
 

 
 
 

NOTICE OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
December 21, 2023 

A G E N D A 
Place: Big Bear Municipal Water District 

  40524 Lakeview Drive, Big Bear Lake, CA 92315 

  Next Resolution Number:  2023‐08        
 

OPEN SESSION:  1:00 P.M. 
 

1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

2.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3.  PUBLIC FORUM 
(The  Board  will  receive  comments  from  the  public  on  items  not  on  the  agenda;  no  action  is 

permitted on these items. Time set aside not to exceed 30 minutes total by all participants) 

 

4.  REPORTS 

A. Interim General Manager 

B. Chief Operations Officer 

C. Committee‐ the following committee met since the last regular Board meeting: 

       Administrative 

 

5.  CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Minutes of a Regular Meeting on December 7, 2023. 

B. Warrant list dated 12/15/2023 in the amount of $184,575.14. 

C. American Casting & Manufacturing (Quagga Seals and Bands) quote not to 

exceed $19,620.20. 

 

6.  BUSINESS 

A. The Administrative Committee (Directors Ludecke & Brewster) recommends 

Resolution 2023‐07 “Big Bear Municipal Water District Administrative Code” for full 

Board approval which incorporates legal changes that will go into effect January 

2024 and removes language that is not relevant. 

B. The Administrative Committee (Directors Ludecke & Brewster) recommends the 

Employee Handbook for full Board approval which includes employee law changes 

Big Bear Municipal Water District 
   
 
Lake Management  Board of Directors 

Steve Ludecke – Division 1 
Bob Rehfuss – Division 2 

Craig Brewster – Division 3 
Mark Lee – Division 4 

Tom Bradford – Division 5 



AGENDA ‐ Board of Directors/ December 21, 2023     
  
 

that go into effect January 2024 and language previously seen in the Administrative 

Code. 

C. The Administrative Committee (Directors Ludecke & Brewster) recommends the 

proposal from Rogue Jet Boatworks not to exceed $159,480 for a new patrol boat 

for full Board approval. 

D. The Administrative Committee (Directors Ludecke & Brewster) recommends the 

proposal from Rogue Jet Boatworks not to exceed $200,000 for a new work boat 

for full Board approval. 

E. The Administrative Committee (Directors Ludecke & Brewster) recommends the 

Big Bear Fire Dock Plan and Agreement for full Board discussion and possible 

approval. 

F. The Administrative Committee (Directors Ludecke & Brewster) recommends 

rejection of the CARPI USA Geomembrane Lining Bid for the Dam Resurfacing 

Project. 

G. Announce Steve Ludecke, Division 1, as President. 

H. Committee Assignments. 

I. Appointment of Board Officers for Calendar year 2024. 

J. Appointment of the District’s JPIA Representative for the Calendar Year 2024.  

K. Board to determine who will be the BVBGSA representative. 

 

7.   ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AND PLACED ON BUSINESS 

 

8.   ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

9.  DIRECTOR COMMENTS 

 

10.  ADJOURNMENT   

   

NEXT MEETING:  Open Session at 1:00 P.M.   

Thursday, January 18, 2024 

40524 Lakeview Drive 

Big Bear Lake, CA 92315   
 

 

PLEASE NOTE:   

Agenda  related  writings  or  documents  provided  to  the  Board  of  Directors  are  available  for  public  inspection  at 
www.bbmwd.com or in the District office during business hours, 8:00 am – 4:30 pm Monday – Friday. 
 
Five (5) minutes may be allotted to each speaker for an item on the agenda and three (3) minutes may be allotted to 
each speaker for an item that is not on the agenda up to a maximum of thirty minutes for each subject matter. A speaker 
who utilizes a translator, except if the speaker uses simultaneous translation equipment, shall receive twice the time 
allotted for a speaker that does not utilize a translator. (Cal. Gov. Code § 54954.3.) 
 
No disruptive conduct shall be permitted at any Board meeting. Persistence in boisterous or disruptive conduct (including 
but not limited to what the general public would consider prophane, explicit, or obscene language) shall be grounds for a 



AGENDA ‐ Board of Directors/ December 21, 2023     
  
 
summary termination, by the President, of that person’s privilege to address the Board and the President may take such 
other actions in accordance with the Brown Act including, but not limited to, clearing the room of those willfully 
interrupting the meeting. (Cal. Gov. Code § 54957.9) 
 
Individuals should contact the General Manager or designee if he/she requires disability‐related accommodation or 
modifications, including auxiliary aids and services, in order to participate in the Board meeting.  (Government Code 
54954.2) 
 



  
  

 
MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF 
BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
HELD ON THURSDAY, December 7, 2023 

 
1. OPEN SESSION 

President Bradford opened the regularly scheduled Board meeting at 1:00 PM at the Big Bear 
Municipal Water District located at 40524 Lakeview Drive, Big Bear Lake, CA 92315 on Thursday 
December 7, 2023.  

 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 

Steve Ludecke, Vice President 
Craig Brewster, Director 
Mark Lee, Director 
Tom Bradford, President 

   
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

President Bradford 
 

3. PUBLIC FORUM 
No comments from the public in attendance. 
 
4. REPORTS 

A. Interim General Manager, Brittany Lamson, reported that our ramps are officially closed for the 
season and all docks and seasonal equipment is being stored at our main office. The Big Bear 
Marina fuel site is going to be closed from soil monitoring, that is a business item, so more detail 
during that report. We received one bid for the Dam Resurfacing project which will be going to the 
admin committee meeting for further review. It is much higher than originally anticipated. We have 
been working with counsel on completely updating both the employee handbook and 
administrative code. Those went through final reviews this week, so they will be in front of the 
Board for approval during our next regular meeting. There was a plane crash incident at Baker Pond 
last Saturday, fortunately no one was severely injured, and the plane was in the dry. The Big Bear 
Airport was the lead on scene. 
B. Vice President Ludecke said all topics will be discussed during business. 

 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Minutes of a Regular Meeting on November 16, 2023. 
B. Warrant list dated 12/1/2023 in the amount of $60,151.02. 

 
Discussion:  
Vice President Ludecke wanted to address one typo, the Board members present from last meeting said 
Director Bradford instead of President Bradford so this should be fixed.  
 
 
 
 



MINUTES/BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Page 2 
Thursday, December 7, 2023 
 
With a motion made by Vice President Ludecke, and seconded by Brewster, the consent calendar pending 
the correct to President Bradford’s title was approved unanimously: 
AYES: Ludecke, Brewster, Lee, Bradford 
NO: 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 
6. BUSINESS 
The Administrative Committee (Directors Ludecke & Brewster) recommends Resolution 2023-06 ‘Fee 
Schedule’ for full Board approval which will remove outdated language and increase staff related fees to 
cover cost. 
 
Discussion: 
Before Ms. Lamson started with the explanation for this item, Vice President Ludecke explained the 
Administrative Committee went through this resolution line item by line item, very thoroughly and are very 
confident with all the changes made. The committee is recommending a charge for the second tow in a 
season to help with the expense of towing. The Board further discussed other tow options but agreed to 
add a flat fee of $100 for second-tow services, but wanted to leave the charge up to the discretion of the 
patrol officer who might be towing the same person over and over again.  
 
With a motion made by Vice President Ludecke, and second by Director Lee, Resolution 2023-06, with the 
addition of the flat second tow fee of $100 instead of time-based charge was unanimously approved: 
AYES: Ludecke, Brewster, Lee, Bradford 
NO: 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 
B. The Administrative Committee (Directors Ludecke & Brewster) recommends Policy 2023-03 ‘District 
Vehicle Use Policy’ for full Board approval which will establish a policy when operating District vehicles. 
 
Discussion: 
Vice President Ludeke again explained that the Administrative Committee went through this document 
item by item and believes it incorporates all concerns about District vehicle use. Vice President Ludecke 
would like to add something in there about if personal vehicles are to be used for District purposes. Ms. 
Lamson explained that there is a line in the Admin Code that states employees in this situation are 
reimbursed at current federal travel rates and that same wording can be added into this policy as well.  
 
With a motion made by Director Brewster, seconded by Vice President Ludecke, Policy 2023-03 ‘District 
Vehicle Use Policy’ the was unanimously approved: 
AYES: Ludecke, Brewster, Lee, Bradford 
NO: 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 
C. The Administrative Committee (Directors Ludecke & Brewster) recommends Contamination Site Cleanup 
Close out efforts not to exceed $10,500 proposal from EnviroMonitoring Services for full Board approval. 
 
Discussion: 



MINUTES/BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Page 3 
Thursday, December 7, 2023 
 
Ms. Lamson explained that the District consultant, EnviroMonitoring Services has received final approval 
for the destruction of the Big Bear Marina contamination clean up site. The Regional Control Board has 
deemed the site to be safe and did not receive any comments against the closure of the site. Although the 
Board did not approve any additional funds for this effort in anticipation of the closure, the remaining 
unused funds in our current contract with them will be enough to fund the project so I suggest using that 
rather than opening a new contract. If approved today, the destruction will begin on the site and should be 
completed by May 2024.  
 
 
With a motion made by Director Brewster, seconded by Vice President Ludecke, the proposal for the Big 
Bear Marina Contamination Clean-Up Site was unanimously approved: 
AYES: Ludecke, Brewster, Lee, Bradford 
NO: 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 
D. The Administrative Committee (Directors Ludecke & Brewster) recommends the BVBGSA Annual 
Groundwater Report from Tom Harder not to exceed $8,750 per partnering agency proposal for full Board 
approval. 
Discussion: 
Ms. Lamson explained this proposal is for work on the required annual report by the BVBGSA. Thomas 
Harder did the report last year, the first year of the report. The initial report requires substantial research 
which is why this year the cost is slightly less. Between the four partner agencies, the individual cost per 
agency will not exceed $8,750. Last year, the effort did come in under budget so that might be the same 
case this year. Counsel Lemieux added that this is a report required by the state from all GSA’s so there is 
no going around it. 
 
 
With a motion made by Vice President Ludecke, seconded by Director Ludecke, the proposal from 
Thomas Harder regarding the GSA annual report not to exceed $8, 750 per agency was unanimously 
approved: 
AYES: Ludecke, Brewster, Lee, Bradford 
NO: 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 
7. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 
N/A 
 
8. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
N/A 
 
9. DIRECTOR COMMENTS 
President Bradford asked about fish stocking, and was very sorry to hear about John Eminger’s passing, he 
was a very influential person for this Valley and he will be missed. 
 
 
10. ADJOURN 



MINUTES/BOARD OF DIRECTORS Page 4 
Thursday, December 7, 2023 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:42 PM. 

 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
       Date:   December 21, 2023  

Location:  40524 Lakeview Drive 
     Big Bear Lake, CA 92315 

  Time: 1:00 PM 

Brittany Lamson, Secretary to the Board of 
 Directors of Big Bear Municipal Water District 

[SEAL] 



Num Type Date Name Account Paid Amount

161089 Bill Pmt -Check 12/14/2023 ADT COMMERCIAL 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

152922... Bill 11/21/2023 5630-10 ꞏ ADMIN-Bldg/Facility Maint/Rep -255.00

TOTAL -255.00

161077 Bill Pmt -Check 12/07/2023 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

1YQC-... Bill 11/29/2023 5631-02 ꞏ OPS-Quagga Prevention Equip -20.13

TOTAL -20.13

161090 Bill Pmt -Check 12/14/2023 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

1HXT-7... Bill 12/10/2023 5541-42 ꞏ OPS-Uniform/Sm Equip Seas Empl -38.31

TOTAL -38.31

161078 Bill Pmt -Check 12/07/2023 ATWELL SHAWN (REIMBURSE) 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

11/29/2... Bill 12/06/2023 5505-09 ꞏ ADMIN-Phone-Employee Reimb -50.00

TOTAL -50.00

161079 Bill Pmt -Check 12/07/2023 BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

981346 Bill 12/02/2023 5520-01 ꞏ ADMIN-District Counsel -4,041.34

TOTAL -4,041.34

161091 Bill Pmt -Check 12/14/2023 BIG BEAR DISPOSAL 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

000009... Bill 12/01/2023 5507-41 ꞏ OPS-Utilities-Main Office -345.70

TOTAL -345.70

161092 Bill Pmt -Check 12/14/2023 BIG BEAR PAINT CENTER, INC 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

345785 Bill 12/08/2023 5630-42 ꞏ OPS-Bldg/Fac Mtn/Rep-EAST RAMP -80.28

TOTAL -80.28

161080 Bill Pmt -Check 12/07/2023 BUTCHER'S BLOCK AND BUILDING ... 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

2312-95... Bill 12/05/2023 5510-04 ꞏ ADMIN-Public Info-Ice Info/Sign -144.14
2312-95... Bill 12/06/2023 5630-42 ꞏ OPS-Bldg/Fac Mtn/Rep-EAST RAMP -26.40

TOTAL -170.54

EFT Bill Pmt -Check 12/05/2023 BVE (EFT) 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

112120... Bill 11/21/2023 5507-22 ꞏ WATER-Utilities-Dam -350.42
112120... Bill 11/21/2023 5507-21 ꞏ WATER-Utilities-Aerator -267.19
112120... Bill 11/21/2023 5507-43 ꞏ OPS-Utilities-Ramps -87.63

TOTAL -705.24

EFT Bill Pmt -Check 12/08/2023 BVE (EFT) 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

112820... Bill 11/28/2023 5507-22 ꞏ WATER-Utilities-Dam -71.31

TOTAL -71.31

161100 Bill Pmt -Check 12/14/2023 CALAVERAS TROUT FARM INC 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

17-965 Bill 12/14/2023 5670-02 ꞏ WATER-Fishery Mgt-FISH PURCHASE -20,400.00

TOTAL -20,400.00

161101 Bill Pmt -Check 12/14/2023 CALAVERAS TROUT FARM INC 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

12:11 PM Big Bear MWD

12/15/23 Warrant List Detail
December 2 - 15, 2023

Check Detail Report Page 1



Num Type Date Name Account Paid Amount

17-966 Bill 12/14/2023 5670-02 ꞏ WATER-Fishery Mgt-FISH PURCHASE -20,400.00

TOTAL -20,400.00

161081 Bill Pmt -Check 12/07/2023 COMPUTER VILLAGE 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

18226 Bill 11/16/2023 5530-02 ꞏ ADMIN- Computer Consults -160.00
5620-12 ꞏ ADMIN-Computer Hardware -1,745.44

18360 Bill 11/30/2023 5530-02 ꞏ ADMIN- Computer Consults -40.00

TOTAL -1,945.44

161082 Bill Pmt -Check 12/07/2023 CONNELLY PUMPING SERVICE 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

27450 Bill 11/06/2023 5632-02 ꞏ MAINT-SS Reliefs Pumping -300.00
27522 Bill 12/04/2023 5632-03 ꞏ MAINT-Portables Pumping/ Rent -435.01

TOTAL -735.01

161093 Bill Pmt -Check 12/14/2023 DIY HOME CENTER 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

27280 Bill 11/28/2023 5620-30 ꞏ MAINT-Equip Maintenance -19.35
27446 Bill 12/06/2023 5543-30 ꞏ MAINT-Small Tools/Tool Supplies -18.40
27539 Bill 12/11/2023 5630-43 ꞏ OPS-Bldg/Fac Mtn/Rep-WEST RAMP -87.22

TOTAL -124.97

EFT Bill Pmt -Check 12/08/2023 FRONTIER (EFT) 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

909866... Bill 11/28/2023 5505-04 ꞏ ADMIN-Phone At the Dam -49.86

TOTAL -49.86

EFT Bill Pmt -Check 12/15/2023 FRONTIER (EFT) 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

909866... Bill 12/01/2023 5505-02 ꞏ ADMIN-Phones Ramps Local Svc -268.03
909866... Bill 12/01/2023 5505-01 ꞏ ADMIN-Phones Local/Hardware/Rep -6.73

5505-03 ꞏ ADMIN-Phones Long Distance -492.63
909866... Bill 12/01/2023 5505-02 ꞏ ADMIN-Phones Ramps Local Svc -160.35

TOTAL -927.74

161094 Bill Pmt -Check 12/14/2023 GEI CONSULTANTS INC 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

3143891 Bill 12/11/2023 6100-02 ꞏ Dam Repair- Sluice Gates -835.00
3143893 Bill 12/11/2023 6100-02 ꞏ Dam Repair- Sluice Gates -9,334.50
3143896 Bill 12/11/2023 6100-02 ꞏ Dam Repair- Sluice Gates -1,496.50

TOTAL -11,666.00

161076 Check 12/05/2023 HOLLOWAY'S MARINA 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

9358 Credit Memo 12/05/2023 4600-03 ꞏ REV OPS - Boat Permits -81.00

TOTAL -81.00

161083 Bill Pmt -Check 12/07/2023 HOOVER BEN (REIMBURSE) 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

12/22/2... Bill 12/06/2023 5505-09 ꞏ ADMIN-Phone-Employee Reimb -50.00

TOTAL -50.00

161095 Bill Pmt -Check 12/14/2023 LAMSON BRITTANY (REIMBURSE) 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

12/15/2... Bill 12/13/2023 5505-09 ꞏ ADMIN-Phone-Employee Reimb -50.00

TOTAL -50.00

161096 Bill Pmt -Check 12/14/2023 MCR TECHNOLOGIES INC 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

12:11 PM Big Bear MWD

12/15/23 Warrant List Detail
December 2 - 15, 2023

Check Detail Report Page 2



Num Type Date Name Account Paid Amount

42123 Bill 11/08/2023 6101-02 ꞏ Dam Monitor Comp-Repair/Update -40,264.25

TOTAL -40,264.25

161097 Bill Pmt -Check 12/14/2023 MOONRIDGE FUEL HAUPT RALPH 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

11302023 Bill 11/30/2023 5590-42 ꞏ OPS-Petroleum-VEHICLES -194.28

TOTAL -194.28

161084 Bill Pmt -Check 12/07/2023 NAPA AUTO PARTS 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

NAPA AUTO PARTS 2200-00 ꞏ Accounts Payable Liability 2.74
618434 Bill 11/30/2023 5543-30 ꞏ MAINT-Small Tools/Tool Supplies -136.82

TOTAL -134.08

161075 Bill Pmt -Check 12/05/2023 NPG ASPHALT 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

1122286 Bill 09/26/2023 5630-44 ꞏ OPS-Bldg/Fac Mtn Pkg Lot ReSeal -61,230.00

TOTAL -61,230.00

161085 Bill Pmt -Check 12/07/2023 PORTERS FIREWOOD 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

3375 Bill 12/06/2023 5630-42 ꞏ OPS-Bldg/Fac Mtn/Rep-EAST RAMP -15,000.00

TOTAL -15,000.00

161098 Bill Pmt -Check 12/14/2023 SCHERMER MICHAEL (REIMBURSE) 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

12/22/2... Bill 12/13/2023 5505-09 ꞏ ADMIN-Phone-Employee Reimb -50.00

TOTAL -50.00

EFT Bill Pmt -Check 12/15/2023 SPECTRUM BUSINESS (EFT) 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

170406... Bill 12/01/2023 5505-08 ꞏ ADMIN- Phone Office -219.97

TOTAL -219.97

161099 Bill Pmt -Check 12/14/2023 STEPHENSON MIKE (REIMBURSE) 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

01/01/2... Bill 12/13/2023 5505-09 ꞏ ADMIN-Phone-Employee Reimb -50.00

TOTAL -50.00

161086 Bill Pmt -Check 12/07/2023 SWRCB 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

WD-023... Bill 11/29/2023 5660-03 ꞏ Aquatic Plnt Ctrl SWRCB Permit -3,576.00

TOTAL -3,576.00

EFT Bill Pmt -Check 12/05/2023 VALERO (EFT) 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

93330757 Bill 11/23/2023 5590-41 ꞏ OPS-Petroleum-VESSELS -355.72
5590-42 ꞏ OPS-Petroleum-VEHICLES -1,128.21

TOTAL -1,483.93

161087 Bill Pmt -Check 12/07/2023 VOICE CARRIER 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

IN21162 Bill 12/02/2023 5505-01 ꞏ ADMIN-Phones Local/Hardware/Rep -114.76

TOTAL -114.76

161088 Bill Pmt -Check 12/07/2023 WAGNER SEAN (REIMBURSE) 1001-01 ꞏ Accounts Payable

10/13-1... Bill 12/04/2023 5505-09 ꞏ ADMIN-Phone-Employee Reimb -50.00

12:11 PM Big Bear MWD

12/15/23 Warrant List Detail
December 2 - 15, 2023

Check Detail Report Page 3



Num Type Date Name Account Paid Amount

TOTAL -50.00

12:11 PM Big Bear MWD

12/15/23 Warrant List Detail
December 2 - 15, 2023

Check Detail Report Page 4





BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 
MEETING DATE:   December 21, 2023                             AGENDA ITEM: 6A 
SUBJECT: 
THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE (DIRECTORS LUDECKE & BREWSTER) RECOMMENDS 
RESOLUTION 2023-07 “BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT ADMINISTRATIVE CODE” FOR 
FULL BOARD APPROVAL WHICH INCORPORATES LEGAL CHANGES THAT WILL GO INTO EFFECT 
JANUARY 2024 AND REMOVES LANGUAGE THAT IS NOT RELEVANT. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
The Administrative Committee recommend that the updated Administrative Code, Resolution 
2023-07 be approved today to ensure all current employment law that takes effect January 1, 
2024 is active. 
 
DISCUSSION/FINDINGS:  
The Administrative Code is reviewed annually for updates, since it has been a few years since the 
entire document has been reviewed, our counsel team reviewed the entire document and made 
numerous changes to make the document consistent with the Handbook, delete items that are 
not normally written in an Administrative Code, and make sure all changing employment law 
items are considered before the new year. 
 
If approved today, the Administrative Code change will take effect immediately.  
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:   None 
 
FINANCING: None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     Submitted by:  Brittany Lamson, Interim General Manager 
  



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-07 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  
BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT  

AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2022-04 (ADMINISTRATIVE CODE)  
AS IT RELATES GENERAL UPDATES  

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT as 
follows: 
 Resolution Section 1. Purpose 

 This resolution amends Resolution 2022-04 (Administrative Code) as it relates to general updates. 

The document in its entirety was revised which included deletions of irrelevant language, changing the 

order of the sections within the document, and updating language to include all upcoming employment 

law changes. 

 Resolution Section 2. Exhibit ‘A’ Administrative Code 

 Exhibit ‘A’ of this resolution is the Administrative Code in its entirety. The document will become 

rule upon the approval of the majority vote of the Board of Directors. 

Resolution Section 2. Other 

 Except as provided herein, Resolution No. 2023-07 is hereby reaffirmed and readopted. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of December 2023. 

 

        ____________________________ 

        Tom Bradford, Board President 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Brittany Lamson, Board Secretary          
  

 

 

 

(SEAL) 



 

01348.0001/934801.1  

 

Big Bear Municipal 
Water District 
Administrative Code 
Resolution 2023-07 (Exhibit ‘A’) 

 

 

 

  



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  1 | P a g e  
 

Contents 
CHAPTER  1.  GENERAL PROVISIONS ............................................................................................................. 4 

Section 1.101  Purpose. ....................................................................................................................... 4 
Section 1.102   Mission and Goals. ........................................................................................................ 4 
Section 1.103  Scope. ........................................................................................................................... 4 
Section 1.104   Effect of Code on Past Actions and Obligations. ........................................................... 4 
Section 1.105   Maintenance of Code. ................................................................................................... 4 
Section 1.106  Definitions. ................................................................................................................... 4 
Section 1.107  Official Seal of Authority. .............................................................................................. 5 
Section 1.109   Holidays. ........................................................................................................................ 5 
Section 1.110   Regular Holidays that Occur on a Weekend. ................................................................ 5 

CHAPTER 2.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS ............................................................................................................. 6 
ARTICLE 1 - ELECTION, APPOINTMENT AND OATHS ................................................................................. 6 

Section 2.101   General. ....................................................................................................................... 6 
Section 2.102   Relationship Among Board Members. ....................................................................... 6 
Section 2.103  Relationship with Officers and Employees. ............................................................... 6 
Section 2.104    Election. ...................................................................................................................... 6 
Section 2.105    Unscheduled Vacancies. ............................................................................................. 6 
Section 2.106   Oath of Office. ............................................................................................................ 7 

ARTICLE 2 - ORGANIZATION AND BOARD OFFICERS ................................................................................. 7 
Section 2.201   Divisions. .................................................................................................................... 7 
Section 2.202    Officers of the Board. ................................................................................................. 7 
Section 2.203    Powers, Duties and Responsibilities of Board. ........................................................... 7 
Section 2.204    Code of Behavior. ...................................................................................................... 8 
Section 2.205  Committee Structure. ................................................................................................ 9 
Section 2.206  Board Development ................................................................................................... 9 

ARTICLE 3 - MEETINGS AND MINUTES ...................................................................................................... 9 
Section 2.301    General. ..................................................................................................................... 9 
Section 2.302   Regular and Special Meetings. .................................................................................... 9 
Section 2.303  Attendance at Meetings ........................................................................................... 10 
Section 2.304    Adjournment. .......................................................................................................... 10 
Section 2.305    Continuance of Hearings. ........................................................................................ 10 
Section 2.306  Minutes of Board Meetings. .................................................................................... 11 
Section 2.307    Rules of Conduct. ..................................................................................................... 11 
Section 2.308    Agenda. ................................................................................................................... 11 
Section 2.309    Closed Sessions. ....................................................................................................... 12 

ARTICLE 4 - COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES ......................................................................................... 13 
Section 2.401   Compensation. ......................................................................................................... 13 
Section 2.402    Expenses. ................................................................................................................. 13 

CHAPTER 3.  DISTRICT OFFICERS ................................................................................................................. 14 
ARTICLE 1 - GENERAL MANAGER ............................................................................................................ 14 

Section 3.101  General Manager. .................................................................................................... 14 
Section 3.102  Administration of Business Affairs of the District .................................................... 14 
Section 3.103    Personnel Rules & Regulations. .............................................................................. 14 
Section 3.104   Emergency Powers. .................................................................................................. 14 
Section 3.105    Collection of Delinquent Accounts. .......................................................................... 14 

ARTICLE 2 - OTHER OFFICERS .................................................................................................................. 14 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  2 | P a g e  
 

Section 3.201    District Counsel. ..................................................................................................... 14 
Section 3.202    Auditor. .................................................................................................................... 15 
Section 3.203    Engineer. .................................................................................................................. 15 
Section 3.204  Lake Rangers. ........................................................................................................... 15 

CHAPTER 4.  EMPLOYEES ............................................................................................................................ 16 
ARTICLE 1 - COMPENSATION .................................................................................................................. 16 

Section 4.101    Positions Authorized. ............................................................................................... 16 
Section 4.102    Compensation. ......................................................................................................... 16 
Section 4.103    Cost-of-Living Adjustment (“COLA”). ....................................................................... 16 

ARTICLE 2 – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS ........................................................................................................... 16 
Section 4.201    Benefits. .................................................................................................................. 16 
Section 4.504  Employee Handbook. ............................................................................................... 16 

CHAPTER 5.  FINANCE ................................................................................................................................. 17 
ARTICLE 1 - BUDGET ................................................................................................................................ 17 

Section 5.101   Establishment of Budget. ......................................................................................... 17 
Section 5.102    Filing of Budget. ...................................................................................................... 17 
Section 5.103    Modification of Budget. .......................................................................................... 17 
Section 5.104   Implementation of the Budget. ............................................................................... 17 

ARTICLE 2 - OFFICIAL BOOKS AND RECORDS .......................................................................................... 17 
Section 5.201    General and Special Books of Account. ................................................................... 17 

ARTICLE 3 - DEPOSITORIES AND BONDS ................................................................................................. 17 
Section 5.301   Bonds. ....................................................................................................................... 17 
Section 5.302    Depositories. .......................................................................................................... 17 

ARTICLE 4 - CLAIMS AND CHECKS ........................................................................................................... 17 
Section 5.401    Claims:  General. ...................................................................................................... 17 
Section 5.402    Filing of Claim Required. ......................................................................................... 18 
Section 5.403    Presentation of Claim. ............................................................................................. 18 
Section 5.404    Contents of Claim. ................................................................................................... 18 
Section 5.405    Time for Presentation of Claims. ............................................................................. 18 
Section 5.406    Leave to Present Late Claim. .................................................................................. 18 
Section 5.407    Time for Action by the Board. ................................................................................. 18 
Section 5.408   Notice of Rejection of Claim..................................................................................... 18 
Section 5.409    Claim as Prerequisite to Suit. ................................................................................... 18 
Section 5.410    Claims Under $500. ................................................................................................. 19 
Section 5.412    Approval of Warrants and Signature of Checks. ..................................................... 19 
Section 5.413    Check Register. ........................................................................................................ 19 
Section 5.414    Deposits. ................................................................................................................... 19 

ARTICLE 5 - PURCHASING ........................................................................................................................ 19 
Section 5.501    Purpose and Scope. .................................................................................................. 19 
Section 5.502    Purchasing Policy. ..................................................................................................... 19 
Section 5.503    Exceptions. ............................................................................................................... 19 
Section 5.504    Professional Services. .............................................................................................. 20 
Section 5.505    Ancillary Procedures. ............................................................................................... 20 

ARTICLE 6 - INVESTMENT POLICY ............................................................................................................ 20 
Section 5.601    Permitted Investments. ........................................................................................... 20 
Section 5.602   Investments. ............................................................................................................. 21 
Section 5.603    Delegation of Authority ........................................................................................... 22 
Section 5.604    Inactive Public Deposits. ......................................................................................... 22 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  3 | P a g e  
 

Section 5.605    Reporting Requirements. ....................................................................................... 22 
Section 5.606   Diversification. ......................................................................................................... 22 
Section 5.607    Adoption of Investment Policy. ................................................................................ 22 

CHAPTER 6.  ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW OF DISTRICT PROJECTS ............................................................... 23 
ARTICLE 1 – GENERAL.............................................................................................................................. 23 

Section 6.101   General. .................................................................................................................... 23 
Section 6.102  Purpose. ................................................................................................................... 23 
Section 6.103  Scope. ....................................................................................................................... 23 
Section 6.104  Delegation of Responsibilities. ................................................................................. 23 

ARTICLE  2.  ROLE OF DISTRICT AS RESPONSIBLE AGENCY ..................................................................... 24 
Section 6.201  Lead Agency Concept. .............................................................................................. 24 
Section 6.202  Consultation with Lead Agency. ............................................................................... 24 
Section 6.203  Challenge to Lead Agency. ....................................................................................... 24 

ARTICLE 3. ROLE OF DISTRICT AS LEAD AGENCY ..................................................................................... 24 
Section 6.301  General. .................................................................................................................... 24 
Section 6.302  Review of Application for Completeness. ................................................................ 25 
Section 6.303  Initial Review. ........................................................................................................... 25 
Section 6.304  Negative Declaration. ............................................................................................... 25 
Section 6.305  Environmental Impact Report. ................................................................................. 26 
Section 6.306 Use of Environmental Documents. ........................................................................... 28 

CHAPTER 7.  MISCELLANEOUS .................................................................................................................... 29 
ARTICLE 1 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE ................................................................................... 29 

Section 7.101    Purpose. ................................................................................................................... 29 
Section 7.102    Designated Positions and Categories of Disclosure. ................................................ 29 
Section 7.103    Filing of Disclosure Statements. .............................................................................. 30 
Section 7.104    Ethical Behavior. ...................................................................................................... 30 

ARTICLE 2 - RECORDS INSPECTION.......................................................................................................... 30 
Section 7.201    Purpose and Scope. .................................................................................................. 30 
Section 7.202    Definitions. .............................................................................................................. 30 
Section 7.203    General. ................................................................................................................... 31 
Section 7.204    Exceptions. .............................................................................................................. 31 
Section 7.205    Additional Public Records. ...................................................................................... 31 
Section 7.206    Justification for Withholding of Records. ................................................................. 31 
Section 7.207    Copies of Records. ................................................................................................... 31 
Section 7.208    Public Counter Files. ................................................................................................. 32 
Section 7.209    Inspection by Board Members. .............................................................................. 32 
Section 7.210    Other Law. ................................................................................................................ 32 

ARTICLE 3 - RETENTION OF RECORDS ..................................................................................................... 32 
Section 7.301    Purpose and Scope. .................................................................................................. 32 
Section 7.302    Retention of Original Records. ................................................................................. 32 
Section 7.303    Retention of Duplicate Original Records. ................................................................. 33 
Section 7.304    Retention of Record for Time Certain. ..................................................................... 33 
Section 7.305    Retention of Other Records. .................................................................................. 34 
Section 7.306    Other Laws. .............................................................................................................. 34 

 

 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  4 | P a g e  
 

CHAPTER  1.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
 Section 1.101  Purpose. 
 This Resolution provides the members of the Board and the District's staff with a statement of 
instructions and policy to implement the Municipal Water District Law of 1911.  This Resolution, and any 
future amendments thereto, may be referred to as the District's “Administrative Code.” 
 
 Section 1.102   Mission and Goals. 
The mission of the District is to maintain Big Bear Lake for recreation and wildlife. 
 
 Section 1.103  Scope. 
 This Code consists of the regulatory, penal, and administrative laws of general application, 
codified pursuant to the authority of the Municipal Water District Law of 1911 and authority provided to 
local agencies under the Government Code.  
 
 Section 1.104   Effect of Code on Past Actions and Obligations. 
 The adoption of this Code or the repeal of a resolution by this Code shall not affect: 
 (a) The prosecution for violations of resolutions committed prior to the effective date of 
 this Code;  
 (b) Any fee or penalty due and unpaid under such resolutions;  
 (c) The validity of a bond required to be posted, filed, or deposited pursuant to any 
resolution;  
 (d)   Vested rights and obligations pertaining to such resolutions; or 
 (e)   Deposits or other matters of record referring to resolutions and not included within this 
Code.  
 Section 1.105   Maintenance of Code. 
 (a)   At least three (3) certified copies of this Code shall be maintained on file in the District 
offices as the official copies of this Code. Additional copies of this Code shall be distributed as directed 
by the General Manager. 
 (b)   Each resolution making a change in this Code shall be filed by the Secretary in books for 
such purpose, properly indexed for ready reference. 
 (c)  At least quarterly, the Secretary shall reproduce and distribute loose leaf pages of this 
Code in which changes have been made with a notation as to the resolution number and date on which 
such change is adopted. 
 
 Section 1.106  Definitions. 
 The following terms are defined for the purposes of this Resolution: 
 (a) “District” refers to the Big Bear Municipal Water District. 
 (b) “Board” refers to the legislative body of the District made up of the Board of Directors. 
 (c) “Board Member” refers to an individual Director elected or appointed to fill a seat on 
the Board.  
 (c) “President” refers to the President of the Board. 
 (d) “Vice President” refers to the Vice President of the Board. 
 (e) “Secretary” refers to the Secretary of the Board.    
 (f) “Treasurer” refers to the Treasurer of the Board.   
 (g) “General Manager” refers to the chief executive officer of the District. 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  5 | P a g e  
 

 (h)  “Employee” refers to a District employee.   
 (i) “Principal Act” refers to the Municipal Water District Law of 1911. 
 (j) “Engineer” refers to the District Engineer. 
 
 Section 1.107  Official Seal of Authority. 
 The following design is hereby determined to be, and it is hereby adopted, as and for the official 
seal of the District: 
 The seal is circular in form and has engraved on the outer edge of the face with the words:  “BIG 
BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT” and within the circle, the words:  “INCORPORATED JANUARY 31, 
1964, CALIFORNIA,” as shown. 
 

 Section 1.109   Holidays. 
 (a) The offices of the District shall normally be closed on the following holidays: 
  January 1    New Year's Day 
  3rd Monday in January   Martin Luther King Day 
  3rd Monday in February  President's Day 
  Last Monday in May   Memorial Day 
  June 19                       National Independence Day 
  July 4     Independence Day 
  First Monday in September  Labor Day 
  November 11    Veterans’ Day 
  Thanksgiving    Thanksgiving Day 
  Friday following Thanksgiving  Thanksgiving Friday 
  December 25    Christmas 
  December 26    Day After Christmas 
 (b) Any day designated as a paid holiday by the Board. 
  
 Section 1.110   Regular Holidays that Occur on a Weekend. 
 Any regular holiday that occurs on Sunday will be observed on the following Monday.  Any 
holiday occurring on Saturday will be observed on the preceding Friday. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  6 | P a g e  
 

CHAPTER 2.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ARTICLE 1 - ELECTION, APPOINTMENT AND OATHS 
 
    Section 2.101   General. 
 The Board shall establish policies and give the General Manager the authority to implement 
policies. The Board is not responsible for the day-to-day management or operations of the District.  
 
 Section 2.102   Relationship Among Board Members. 
 A quorum of the Board shall not discuss the business of the District directly, seriatim, or through 
an intermediary except at a public meeting. A quorum of the Board may discuss the time, place, and 
agenda for a meeting at any time.  
 
 Section 2.103  Relationship with Officers and Employees. 

(a) The Board and individual Board Members may question the General Manager with 
respect to the development and implementation of District policy.  The Board, but not the individual 
Board Members, may direct the General Manager with respect to the development and implementation 
of District policy.   

(b) The Board and individual Board Members are prohibited from dealing directly with any 
Employee regarding District business, except the General Manager and the Board Secretary. Continued 
violation to this section shall be referred to the full Board for discussion. 
 
 Section 2.104    Election. 
 (a) Members of the Board shall be elected to office in accordance with the provisions of the 
Principal Act. 
 (b) Board Members shall be elected on the following schedule, with terms commencing at 
the time stated and every fourth year thereafter: 
 Board Member representing: Division 1 - January 2026 
     Division 2 - January 2026 
     Division 3 - January 2026 
     Division 4 - January 2024 
     Division 5 - January 2024 
 
 Section 2.105    Unscheduled Vacancies. 
  (a) The office of Board Member may become vacant before the end of the term 
because of death, resignation or other event causing vacancy. A written resignation is irrevocable and 
effective when filed with the Secretary. An oral resignation is irrevocable and effective when accepted 
by the Board.  
  (b)  A notice of intention to fill the vacancy by appointment shall be posted by the 
Secretary immediately when an unscheduled vacancy on the Board occurs. At least ten (10) days after 
the notice is posted and within sixty (60) days after the effective date of the vacancy, the remaining 
Board Members may fill such vacancy by appointment or by calling an election. The San Bernardino 
County Board of Supervisors may fill the vacancy if the Board fails to act within sixty (60) days of the 
effective date of the vacancy.  
  (c) If a vacancy is not filled by appointment, an election shall be held at the next 
regular election date at least one hundred fourteen (114) days after the effective date of the vacancy. 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  7 | P a g e  
 

  (d)  A person appointed or elected to fill an unexpired term shall hold office until the 
next regular district election held at least one hundred fourteen (114) days after the effective date of 
the vacancy. 
 
 Section 2.106   Oath of Office. 
 Persons elected or appointed to the Board shall take the oath of office prior to assuming office 
in the manner and at the time prescribed by law. The Secretary shall administer the oath. 
 
ARTICLE 2 - ORGANIZATION AND BOARD OFFICERS 
 
 Section 2.201   Divisions. 
 The District is divided into five (5) divisions as shown on the Official Map of Division Boundaries 
on file in the District offices.  Each division is represented by one Board Member. 
 
 Section 2.202    Officers of the Board. 
 (a) The President and Vice President shall be appointed by the Board from its members at 
the first meeting in the month of January of every year. 
 (b) The office of the President shall be rotated from division to division annually on a 
numerical basis.  If a Board Member declines the office, or has served less than one (1) year, the Board 
Member serving the next numerical division shall be President. If no one accepts the position, the 
current President may appoint the next President. 
 (c) The office of Vice President shall be rotated from division to division annually on a 
numerical basis to the Board Member whose division is scheduled as the following year's President.  If 
the Board Member declines the office, or has served less than one (1) year, the Board Member serving 
the next numerical division shall be Vice President. 
 (d) The District's Executive Assistant shall also serve as Secretary to the Board, and the 
District's General Manager shall also serve as Treasurer and Deputy Secretary when the Secretary is 
absent. 
 
 Section 2.203    Powers, Duties and Responsibilities of Board. 
 Certain duties are delegated to Board Members beyond those provided for by statute: 
 (a) The President serves as presiding officer. 
 (b) The Vice President serves as Parliamentarian and as presiding officer in the absence of 
the President. 
 (c) The Secretary is responsible for the accuracy and availability of the minutes of Board 
meetings and the Official Record of ordinances, resolutions and orders passed or adopted by the Board.  
The Secretary shall certify to the passage and adoption of ordinances, resolutions and orders of the 
Board, to the filing of documents filed with, or by order of, the Board, to the official status, capacity and 
signature of all officers and Employees of the District, and to matters appearing of record in the files and 
records of the District and of its Board, or of any office or officer of the District. 
 (d) The Treasurer is responsible for receiving and depositing monies of the District, the 
certification that checks presented for Board approval in payment of obligations of the District are 
correct and supporting documents available, and the investment of District funds. 
 (e)  Board members should always be guided by the best interests of the District and its 
constituents. 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  8 | P a g e  
 

 (f)  The primary responsibility of a Board Member is to guide the policy and direction of the 
District.  The General Manager administers the day-to-day activities and is solely responsible for 
personnel matters. 
 (g)  The smooth working of the District is a team effort. All individuals should try to work 
together in the collaborative process, assisting each other in conducting the affairs of the District. 
 (h)  Board Members should develop a working relationship with the General Manager 
wherein current issues, concerns, and District projects can be discussed comfortably and openly. 
 

Section 2.204    Code of Behavior. 
 (a)  Board Members should commit themselves to promote communication, courtesy, 
honesty, respect, and trust within the Board, Staff, and citizens. 
 (b) Board Members should commit themselves to emphasizing the positive, avoiding 
hidden agendas and other negative forms of interactions. Any degrading or malicious comments about 
the General Manager or any staff member will not be tolerated.  
 (c)  Board Members should commit themselves to focusing on issues and not personalities. 
 (d)  In seeking clarification on information, operations, and policy items, Board Members 
should directly approach the General Manager to obtain information needed to supplement, upgrade to 
enhance their knowledge to improve legislative decision making.  
 (e)  In handling operational complaints from citizens, tenants, and property owners in the 
District, said complaints should be referred to the General Manager. 
 (f)  In handling items related to safety, concerns for safety or hazards should be reported to 
the General Manager or to District personnel. 
 (g)  No Board member intentionally shall impede the General Manager’s powers and 
functions. 
 (h)  Each Board Member is governed by the procedures set out in the Employee Handbook 
for dealing with a harassment complaint.  In the event the General Manager is the subject of the 
harassment complaint, the complaint shall be reported to and handled by the District legal Counsel.  
 (i) The failure of a Board Member to comply with the provisions of this Section shall 
constitute grounds for disciplinary action against him/her. A majority of the Board may place a censure 
hearing on a District Board agenda. In taking such action, the Board shall identify the Board Member or 
Board Members involved and describe the conduct constituting the alleged violation. 
 (j)  A Board Member who is the subject of an alleged violation shall be provided with 
written notice of the violation and the grounds for the proposed action.  Such notice shall be prepared 
by District staff and reviewed by legal counsel.  At the censure hearing, the Board Member shall have an 
opportunity to be heard concerning the allegations that led to the use of censure.  The Board Member 
may submit a written response to the allegations in addition to, or in lieu of, speaking at the hearing if 
he/she so chooses. 
 (k)  If, at the close of the censure hearing, the District Board finds that the Board Member’s 
conduct does not comply with the District’s standards, the District Board may direct staff to prepare a 
resolution of censure which may include the imposition of sanctions against the Board Member as a 
majority of the Board deems appropriate.  Such sanctions may include removal from a committee and 
restrictions on District-related travel privileges. At the next District Board meeting, the Board may 
consider and adopt the resolution of censure including any sanctions imposed by the Board. 
 (l)  A violation of this Section shall not be considered a basis for challenging the validity of a 
Board decision. 
 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  9 | P a g e  
 

 Section 2.205  Committee Structure. 
 (a) At the last Board meeting each year, the President shall announce the standing 
committee assignments.  A standing committee shall be comprised of two (2) Board Members and 
formed to discuss assigned matters.  As nearly as practicable, each Board Member shall participate as 
equally as possible in the committees.  
 (b) To the extent practicable, committees shall review and make recommendations on 
matters to appear on a Board agenda.  No item shall be placed on an agenda at the request of one (1) 
Board Member.  Such requests shall be directed to the appropriate committee for review.  A committee 
decision not to place an item on a Board agenda can be overruled if three (3) Board Members make the 
request. 
 

Section 2.206  Board Development 
 (a)   New Board Members will: 
  1. Participate in AB1234 Ethics Training within the first year of taking office  
 and every other year thereafter. 
  2. Participate in AB1825 Sexual Harassment Training pursuant to Govt. Code 
 Sections 53237 et seq. within the six months of taking office and every other year 
 thereafter. 
  3. Be given access to Board Development Webinars and any other applicable 
training. 
 (b)   All Board Members will participate in: 
  1. Biennial Ethics Training in compliance with AB1234. 
  2. Biennial Sexual Harassment Training in compliance with Govt. Code 
 Sections 53237 et seq. 
  3. Budget and Development Workshops. 
  4. Any other training as required by law or approved by a vote of the Board. 
 

ARTICLE 3 - MEETINGS AND MINUTES 
 
 Section 2.301    General. 
 (a) Meetings of the Board and advisory bodies shall be open to the public.  No action shall 
be taken by secret ballot at such meetings. 
 (b) The terms used in this article have the same meaning as the Ralph M. Brown Act. 
 (c) Meetings of the Board and advisory bodies shall be held within the District boundaries, 
except: (1) to comply with State or Federal law or court order; (2) to inspect real property or personal 
property which cannot be moved; to meet with another public agency at the other agency on multi-
agency matters; (3) to discuss legislative or regulatory matters with State or Federal officials; (4) to 
discuss matters relating to a District facility in the facility; or (5) to consult with legal counsel at counsel’s 
office if so doing will result in a reduction in legal fees associated with the meeting. 
 (d) Secretary shall provide each member a copy of these regulations. 
 
 Section 2.302   Regular and Special Meetings. 

(a) The Board shall hold regular meetings on the first and third Thursday of each month at 
the hour of 1:00 o'clock p.m. at the District's headquarters located at 40524 Lakeview 
Drive, Big Bear Lake, California.  
 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  10 | P a g e  
 

 Section 2.303  Attendance at Meetings 
  (a) Board Members are expected to attend all regular and special meetings of the Board. 
  (b) Board Members appointed to a committee are expected to attend all scheduled 
meetings of that committee. 
  (c) A Board Member absence may be excused when known by the Board President or 
Vice-President and General Manager no less than 24 hours before the time of the regular scheduled 
meeting or scheduled committee meeting.  An unexcused absence, which is defined as a no-show, no-
call, requires a finding by the Board and will be formally noted in their file. 
  (d) If an unexcused or repeated absence does occur, a censure hearing may be taken 
before the whole Board for review. 
 (e) Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President or three (3) Board 
Members by delivering written notice to each Board Member and to each local newspaper of general 
circulation, radio, or television station requesting notice in writing within the prior twelve (12) months. 
The notice shall be delivered at least twenty-four (24) hours before the time of each meeting. A Board 
Member may waive notice for his or herself by filing a written waiver of notice with the Secretary or by 
being present at the meeting when it convenes. 
 (f) The Board may hold an emergency meeting, but not a closed session, without twenty-
four (24) hour notice in the case of a work stoppage, crippling disaster, or other activity severely 
impairing public health or safety and requiring prompt action due to the disruption or threatened 
disruption of public facilities. Each newspaper, radio, or television station requesting notice of special 
meetings shall be notified by the Secretary by telephone at least one (1) hour prior to an emergency 
meeting. If telephone service is not available, the newspapers, radio, or television stations shall be 
notified of the meeting, the purposes of the meeting and action taken as soon after the meeting as 
possible. 
 

Section 2.304    Adjournment. 
 (a) A regular, adjourned regular, special, or adjourned special meeting may be adjourned to 
a time and place specified in the order of adjournment.   
 (b) If a quorum is not present for a regular or adjourned regular meeting, the Secretary or 
Deputy Secretary may declare the meeting adjourned to a stated time and place and cause a written 
notice of such adjournment to be given in the same manner as provided for a special meeting. When a 
regular or adjourned regular meeting is adjourned, the resulting adjourned meeting is a regular meeting 
for all purposes.  
 (c) A copy of the order or notice of adjournment shall be conspicuously posted on or near 
the door of the place where the regular, adjourned regular, special, or adjourned special meeting was 
held within twenty-four (24) hours after the time of adjournment. When an order of adjournment fails 
to state when the adjourned meeting is to be held, it shall be held at the hour specified for regular 
meetings. 
 
 Section 2.305    Continuance of Hearings. 
 A hearing held, or noticed to be held at a meeting may be continued or recontinued to a 
subsequent meeting in the same manner and to the same extent as the adjournment of meetings. If the 
hearing is continued to a time less than twenty-four (24) hours after the time specified in the order, a 
notice of continuance of hearing shall be posted immediately following the meeting at which the order 
of continuance was made. 
  



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  11 | P a g e  
 

 Section 2.306  Minutes of Board Meetings. 
 (a) Meetings, except closed sessions, shall be recorded in written minutes.   
 (b) The minutes of the emergency meeting showing persons notified or attempted to be 
notified, the roll call vote, and action taken shall be posted for at least ten (10) days as soon after the 
meeting as possible.  
 (c) The written minutes of meetings need not be a verbatim transcription but shall reflect:  
 

(1) official actions taken by the Board;   
(2) disposition of items appearing on the agenda;   
(3)          the number and title of ordinances and resolutions.  

 
 (d) The written minutes are not official minutes until approved by the Board. Upon 
approval, the minutes will be signed by the Secretary and the Seal of the District affixed.   
 (e) Any person attending an open meeting of the Board may record the proceeding on 
audio or video media unless the Board finds the recording cannot continue without noise, illumination 
or obstruction of view constituting a persistent disruption of proceedings. 
 
 Section 2.307    Rules of Conduct. 
 (a) The affirmative vote of at least three (3) Board Members is necessary for the Board to 
take action.  The Board shall take action by motion, resolution, or ordinance.  Motions and resolutions 
may be adopted on voice vote; roll call shall be taken if requested by any Board Member.  Ordinances 
shall be adopted on roll call vote. 
 (b) The District may use video teleconferencing to receive public comment or testimony 
and for deliberations of the Board in accordance with state law.  If video teleconferencing is used, the 
agenda shall be posted at all video teleconference locations and reasonable rules shall be adopted to 
protect the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties and the public appearing before the Board. 
 (c) Meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the latest edition of Robert's Rules of 
Order insofar as such rules are compatible with the Principal Act and other laws of the State of 
California.  Committees shall adopt rules of order appropriate to their work. 
 (d) If any meeting is willfully interrupted by a group or groups of persons so as to render the 
orderly conduct of such meeting unfeasible and order cannot be restored by the removal of individuals 
who are willfully interrupting the meeting, the Board may order the meeting room cleared.  Only 
matters appearing on the agenda may be considered in such a session. Duly accredited representatives 
of the press or other news media, except those participating in the disturbance, shall be allowed to 
attend the session.  The Board may establish a procedure for readmitting individuals not responsible for 
willfully disturbing the orderly conduct of the meeting. 
 (e) The Board shall not prohibit public criticism of the policies, procedures, programs, or 
services of the District or of the acts or decisions of the Board.  However, no privilege or protection is 
hereby conferred for expression beyond that otherwise provided by law. 
  
 Section 2.308    Agenda. 
 (a) At least seventy-two (72) hours before a regular meeting, or at least twenty-four (24) 
hours prior to a special meeting, the Secretary shall post an agenda containing a brief, general 
description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting, including the items to 
be discussed in closed session.  The posting shall be freely accessible to the public. 
 (b) The agenda for all meetings shall include the opportunity for the public to address the 
Board prior to taking action on any matter.  The agenda for regular and adjourned regular meetings shall 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  12 | P a g e  
 

include the opportunity for the public to address the Board on matters within the jurisdiction of the 
District but not on the agenda. 
 (c) No action shall be taken on matters not shown on the posted agenda, except members 
may briefly respond to:  (1) statements made or questions posed during public comment; (2) requests 
for clarification; (3) provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information; (4) request 
staff to report back to the Board at a subsequent meeting; or (5) direct staff to place a matter of 
business on a future agenda. 
 (d) Prior to discussion of any matter on the agenda, the Board may add matters to the 
agenda upon a majority finding an emergency exists or upon at least a two-thirds vote finding there is a 
need to take immediate action and the need for action came to the attention of the District subsequent 
to the posting of the agenda.  If only three (3) Board Members are present, the finding of the need for 
action shall be by unanimous vote.  
 (e) Meetings to consider a new or increased assessment shall be preceded by at least forty-
five (45) days notice as specified by law. 
 
 Section 2.309    Closed Sessions. 
 (a) The Board may conduct a closed session to:  
(1) Consider the appointment, promotion, or job performance of an Employee under direct hiring of 
the Board;   
(2) Consider charges levied against an Employee as a part of disciplinary proceedings unless the 
employee requests a public hearing; 
(3) Establish the District’s position for employee negotiations;  
(4) Consider pending or potential claims or litigation;  
(5) Consider property acquisition or disposition with negotiator; or   
 (b) The agenda shall state the purpose of the closed session, under Gov. Code, § 54954.5,  
unless the purpose of the closed session is to:  
(1) Consider charges levied against an employee in which case, the identity of the employee shall 
not be disclosed unless already publicly known or requested by the employee;   
(2) Discuss pending or potential claims or litigation and counsel announces disclosure of the identity 
of the claimant or litigant would prejudice the  District; or   
 (c) Action taken in closed session shall be publicly announced at the same meeting as the 
closed session.  If the action was taken by roll call vote, the vote shall be announced.  
 (d) When closed session held at the end of a meeting will result in a decision authorizing 
expenditures, the action shall be deferred until the next regular meeting and considered as a part of the 
regular agenda, unless the matter involves:  
(1) Litigation with court-imposed deadlines before the next regular meeting;  
(2) Appointment, removal, or dismissal of District officers or employees; or  
(3) Response to emergency conditions.  
 (e) Counsel shall prepare a confidential memorandum stating the purpose of the closed 
session and action taken.  This memorandum shall be filed with the General Manager in confidence. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  13 | P a g e  
 

ARTICLE 4 - COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES 
 
  Section 2.401   Compensation. 
 In accordance with Section 71255 of the Water Code, each Board Member shall be 
compensated in the amount established by Ordinance for each day’s attendance at meetings of the 
Board or for each day’s service rendered as a Board Member by request of the Board not to exceed six 
(6) days in any calendar month.  A Board Member shall not be compensated for more than one (1) per 
diem per day even if more than one meeting is attended in one (1) day.  At least annually, the Board 
shall determine the meetings for which Board Members shall be compensated.  Board Members shall be 
compensated only for meetings approved by the Board. 
 
 Section 2.402    Expenses. 
 (a) If previously approved by the Board, a Board Member shall receive reasonable and 
necessary reimbursement for travel, meals, lodging, registration, and similar expenses incurred on 
District business.  The rate for reimbursement shall not exceed the rate published by the IRS for 
deduction from taxes.  Board Members shall submit expense reports within fifteen (15) days of the 
activity for which reimbursement is requested. 
 (b) During September of each year, the General Manager shall prepare a list of amounts 
paid during the prior fiscal year to reimburse a Board Member or Employee for individual expenses of 
one hundred dollars ($100.00) or more.  To determine the value of an item, the total charges for the 
item for the day shall be considered.  For example, several transportation bills, each less than one 
hundred dollars ($100.00), but totaling more than one hundred dollars ($100.00), requires a report.   
 (c) The District shall pay for the attendance of up to two (2) Board Members at any one 
seminar, conference or other similar meeting or event, unless otherwise approved by the Board.  
Following an election, an incumbent choosing not to seek another term or who is defeated in the 
election, shall not be eligible for seminar attendance during the remaining months in office.  The 
maximum fiscal-year expenditure per Board Member shall be set each year in the annual budget.  First 
choice for seminar attendance shall be determined by the committee description most closely related to 
the seminar subject matter as determined by the President.  Should a committee member be unable, or 
not wish, to attend a seminar, the option to attend shall then be extended first to the committee 
alternate. 
 (d) At the next Regular Board meeting after a Board Member's attendance at a conference or 
other event at District's expense, the Board Member shall provide a brief or written report regarding 
that conference.  The written report may be provided on a form, which will be included with the agenda 
packet. 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  14 | P a g e  
 

CHAPTER 3.  DISTRICT OFFICERS 
ARTICLE 1 - GENERAL MANAGER 
 
 Section 3.101  General Manager. 
 The General Manager shall be appointed by the Board as the chief executive officer and shall be 
responsible directly to the Board.  The General Manager shall have full charge and control of the 
planning, design, construction, operation and maintenance of District facilities and the administration of 
the business affairs of the District within the program and policies established by the Board, as outlined 
in the job description approved by the Board. 
 
 Section 3.102  Administration of Business Affairs of the District. 
 The General Manager shall have full power and authority to administer the business affairs of 
the District within the program and policies established by the Board, including: placing items on Board 
agendas; purchasing; customer service; and employment matters (e.g., employing, promoting, 
transferring and discharging employees and assistants and prescribing the duties of employees and 
assistants and in fixing their compensation in accordance with the policies and schedules approved by 
the Board). 
 
 Section 3.103    Personnel Rules & Regulations. 
 The General Manager shall submit recommended personnel rules and regulations, including 
salary recommendations, from time to time to the Board for approval.  Such recommendations may be 
in the form of a Memorandum of Understanding or Policy Memorandum.  Such recommendations, 
when approved, shall supersede this Code to the extent there is any conflict between such 
recommendations and the personal rules and regulations in this Code. 
 
 Section 3.104   Emergency Powers. 
 If an emergency arises which would ordinarily be brought to the attention of the Board but 
insufficient time exists within which to give notice as required by law, the General Manager is 
authorized, in his/her discretion, to take such emergency action as he/she deems appropriate and 
reasonable. 
 

Section 3.105    Collection of Delinquent Accounts. 
 The General Manager may engage a collection agency to collect accounts delinquent over three 
(3) months and collection efforts have proven unsuccessful. 
  
ARTICLE 2 - OTHER OFFICERS 
 
 Section 3.201    District Counsel. 
 (a)  District shall hire General Counsel based on the needs of the District. 
 (b) Bond Counsel or special counsel shall be appointed by the Board. The compensation of 
the Bond Counsel will be set by the Board. 
 (c) District Counsel shall report possible violations of District policy and State or Federal law 
to the General Manager.  District Counsel shall report possible violations of District policy not corrected 
by the General Manager, General Manager’s possible violations of State or Federal penal law, and 
violations of policy or law by a Board Member to the Board, and to the District Attorney or United States 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  15 | P a g e  
 

Attorney, as the case may be, when instructed by the Board, or if the Board fails to act, as the District 
Counsel deems appropriate. 
 
 Section 3.202    Auditor. 

 An independent auditor shall be hired by the Board to annually review the financial 
records of the District. 

 
 Section 3.203    Engineer. 

Consulting Engineers shall be hired by the Board to assist the District on an as- needed 
 basis. 

 Section 3.204  Lake Rangers. 
  The District shall employ lake rangers in accordance with Water Code section 71341.5. 

The primary function of these lake rangers will be to protect the properties of the 
District and to protect persons on District property. 

  
 Section3.204  Chief Operations Officer 
   The District may hire a Chief Operations Officer based on the needs of the District 

 through a contractual employment agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  16 | P a g e  
 

CHAPTER 4.  EMPLOYEES 
ARTICLE 1 - COMPENSATION 
 
 Section 4.101    Positions Authorized. 
 The Board shall, by resolution, approve positions necessary for the performance of the District's 
work. The resolution shall identify the position by job title and describe the requirements for and the 
duties of the position. All authorized positions, with the exception of contract employees, are 
considered “at-will” employment. 
 
 Section 4.102    Compensation. 

(a) The Board shall approve the compensation range for each authorized position.  Newly-hired 
employees are typically assigned a wage on the first step in the compensation plan. In their 
sole discretion, the General Manager may assign any employee to a different step in the 
approved range.  

(b)  An employee sent home from the work site by a Supervisor due to lack of work, either prior 
to or following commencement of work for the day, shall be paid for at least one half of the 
hours they were scheduled to work hours on that day.  If more than one half of scheduled 
hours have been worked, the employee shall receive pay for actual hours worked. 

  
 Section 4.103    Cost-of-Living Adjustment (“COLA”). 
Subject to the following provisions, employees of the District may receive a Cost-of-Living Adjustment 
(COLA) on July 1 of each year if a favorable annual review is received by June 30. A favorable review is 
defined as a total score of 3 or higher on a 5-point scale.  This adjustment, if any, is based on the most 
current available Consumer Price Index Urban Wage Earner of Los Angeles, Riverside and Orange 
County, CA areas.  In any event, only adjustments of less than five percent (5%) can be granted without 
Board approval through the General Manager.  Any proposed COLA of five percent (5%) or greater 
requires advance approval of the Board of Directors. COLAs are typically granted prospectively only. In 
no event will a COLA be granted retroactively for longer than thirty (30) days. 
 
ARTICLE 2 – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
 Section 4.201    Benefits. 
 Benefits provided to District employees are decided by the Board of Directors.  
 
 Section 4.504  Employee Handbook. 
 The General Manager shall prepare an employee handbook which implements the provisions of 
this Administrative Code by providing detailed instructions concerning the terms and conditions of 
employment. 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  17 | P a g e  
 

CHAPTER 5.  FINANCE 
ARTICLE 1 - BUDGET 
 
 Section 5.101   Establishment of Budget. 
 The General Manager shall present a proposed budget to the Board for consideration prior to 
the commencement of each fiscal year. 
 
 Section 5.102    Filing of Budget. 
 The Senior Accountant shall file a copy of the Audited Financial Statements with the State 
Controller’s office within the deadlines each year. 
 
 Section 5.103    Modification of Budget. 
 If the General Manager determines that the approved budget is inadequate to address District 
requirements due to changes occurring subsequent to the approval of the budget, he/she shall submit 
recommended modifications to the Board for action. 
 
 Section 5.104   Implementation of the Budget. 
 The General Manager shall implement the approved or revised budget, provided all capital 
expenditures shall be approved by the Board before they are undertaken. 
  
ARTICLE 2 - OFFICIAL BOOKS AND RECORDS 
 
 Section 5.201    General and Special Books of Account. 
 The Treasurer shall maintain books of account in accordance with the accepted accounting 
principles showing the status of all monies received and disbursed and shall also maintain such general 
and special fund accounts as are necessary to accomplish this purpose. 
 
ARTICLE 3 - DEPOSITORIES AND BONDS 
 
 Section 5.301   Bonds. 
 The Treasurer shall secure a bond in the amount of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) 
per incident covering Employees who are authorized to receive or spend money. Premiums shall be paid 
by the District.  
 
 Section 5.302    Depositories. 
 The Board shall, from time to time, designate depositories to have custody of the funds of the 
District. 
 
ARTICLE 4 - CLAIMS AND CHECKS 
 
 Section 5.401    Claims:  General. 
 The provisions of this Article apply to all claims filed against this District for money or damages, 
including but not limited to, claims filed by local governmental agencies. 
 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  18 | P a g e  
 

 Section 5.402    Filing of Claim Required. 
 A claim shall be presented in accordance with this Article in all cases described herein. 
 
 Section 5.403    Presentation of Claim. 
 A claim, or any amendment, shall be presented to the District by delivery to the Secretary of the 
District or by mailing it to the Secretary at the District's office. 
 
 Section 5.404    Contents of Claim. 
 A claim shall be presented to the District by the claimant or by a person acting on his behalf and 
shall show: 
 (a) The mailing address of the claimant; 
 (b) Mailing address to which the person presenting the claim desires notice to be sent; 
 (c) The date, place and other circumstances of the occurrence or transaction which gave 
rise to the claim asserted; 
 (d) The general description of the indebtedness, obligation, injury, damage or loss incurred 
so far as may be known at the time of presentation of the claim; 
 (e) The name or names of the public employee or employees causing the injury, damage, or 
loss if known;  
 (f) The amount claimed as of the date of presentation of the claim, including the estimated 
amount of any prospective injury, damage, or loss insofar as it may be known at the time of 
presentation of the claim, together with the basis of computation of the amount claimed; and 
 (g) The signature of the claimant or some person on his/her behalf. 
 
 Section 5.405    Time for Presentation of Claims. 
 A claim relating to a cause of action for death or for injury to person or to personal property or 
growing crop shall be presented not later than six (6) months after accrual of cause of action.  A claim 
relating to any other cause of action shall be presented not later than one (1) year after the accrual of 
the cause of action.  
 
 Section 5.406    Leave to Present Late Claim. 
 When a claim is not presented within the required time, an application may be made to the 
District for leave to present such claim.  Section 911.4 (b), and Section 911.6 through 912.2 inclusive, 
and Sections 946.4 and 946.6 of the Government Code are applicable to such application, and the time 
specified in this Article shall be the time specified in Government Code Sections 911.2, 911.6, and 946.6. 
 
 Section 5.407    Time for Action by the Board. 
 The Board shall act on the claim within forty-five (45) days after the claim has been presented to 
the District, if General Manager has not taken action. 
 
 Section 5.408   Notice of Rejection of Claim. 
 Written notice of any action taken pursuant to this Article rejecting a claim in whole or in part 
shall be given to the person who presented the claim. 
 
 Section 5.409    Claim as Prerequisite to Suit. 
 (a) No suit for money or damages may be brought against the District on a cause of action 
for which a claim is required until the written claim has been presented to the District and has been 
acted upon by the Board. 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  19 | P a g e  
 

 (b) No suit may be brought against the District on any cause of action for which a claim is 
required unless such suit commences within six (6) months after the date the claim is acted upon by the 
Board or is deemed to have been rejected by the Board. 
 Section 5.410    Claims Under $500. 
 The General Manager may allow compromise or settle a claim against the District if the amount 
to be paid pursuant to such allowance, compromise or settlement does not exceed five hundred dollars 
($500).  The General Manager shall advise the Board when a claim is allowed, settled, or compromised. 
 
 Section 5.412    Approval of Warrants and Signature of Checks. 
 (a) No money shall be disbursed from the General Fund except upon prior approval of the 
General Manager.  Checks drawn on the General Fund should be signed by two of the District’s 
authorized signatories recognized by the District bank, if available, and shall have at least one signature 
per check, provided the General Manager may sign checks for payroll, in the amount approved by the 
Board and for usual and necessary utility bills. 
 (b) When possible, electronic bill-pay may be utilized for District bills if approved by the 
General Manager. 
 
 Section 5.413    Check Register. 
 A check register showing the check number, payee, amount, the fund upon which it is drawn 
and the purpose of each check will be prepared by the Treasurer and provided to the Board no later 
than twenty-four (24) hours before each regular Board meeting. 
 
 Section 5.414    Deposits. 
 (a) Monies received by the District shall be deposited in the General Fund. 
 (b) No money shall be deposited in the Revolving Fund except upon order of the Board. 
  
ARTICLE 5 - PURCHASING 
 
 Section 5.501    Purpose and Scope. 
 This Article provides criteria and procedures for the purchase of supplies and equipment for use 
by the District.  This Article does not abrogate provisions of State or Federal Law establishing more 
stringent purchasing procedures. 
 
 Section 5.502    Purchasing Policy. 
 (a) Public Works Contracts: 

(1) The District will follow all rules & guidelines stated within the California Uniform Cost 
Accounting Program. 
(2) The District will follow all California prevailing wage rules and guidelines in 
accordance with current Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) regulations. 

 
 Section 5.503    Exceptions. 
 (a) Procedures relating to the purchase of supplies or equipment estimated to cost five 
thousand dollars ($5,000) or less may be dispensed with when: 
  (1) The cost of the supplies or equipment is established by Federal, State or local 
regulation such as is the case with certain types of utility service, e.g., telephone, telegraph, light, power 
and water, and supplies and equipment appurtenant thereto. 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  20 | P a g e  
 

  (2) The supplies and equipment are by their nature difficult and expensive to 
describe by appropriate specifications, in which event, suppliers of known repute shall be requested to 
submit proposals for designing or supplying the supplies and equipment in the same manner as 
professional services are obtained.  Such proposal shall contain cost estimates and a sufficient 
explanation to permit the Board to decide upon alternative proposals. 
  (3) An emergency exists with respect to supplies or equipment. 
  (4) The supply or equipment is readily available from only one (1) or two (2) sources 
in which event the reason for specifying the acceptable article shall be noted on the purchase order. 
 (b) Labor and material necessary for emergency repair or replacement of public facilities of 
the District damaged by unanticipated calamity may be undertaken without giving notice for 
competitive bids as follows: 
  (1) By 4/5’s vote, the Board may authorize procurement of labor or material 
without bidding to make emergency repairs or replacements.  Such authorization shall be based on 
substantial evidence set forth in the minutes of the meeting that the emergency will not permit delay 
and action is necessary to respond to the emergency.  The need to continue or terminate the 
authorization shall be reviewed at each subsequent regular meeting until the emergency subsides or the 
work is complete. 
  (2) The General Manager may authorize the procurement of labor or material 
without bidding to make emergency repairs or replacements when a meeting of the Board cannot be 
commenced to authorize emergency action in a timely manner.  The General Manager shall report to 
the Board within seven (7) days of the emergency or at the next regular meeting scheduled within 
fourteen (14) days after the action.  The report shall describe the emergency and reasons justifying the 
emergency action.  At every regular meeting following the General Manager's action, the Board shall 
determine by 4/5's vote whether the need for emergency action continues.  
 
 Section 5.504    Professional Services. 
 Professional services shall be obtained in accordance with procedures recommended by the 
ethics of the discipline involved.  In general, the General Manager shall solicit proposals from qualified 
professionals.  Proposals shall consist of outlines of the work to be accomplished. The General Manager 
shall recommend what is the best proposal to the Board who will accept or reject it.  The General 
Manager will then negotiate a contract for Board approval with the firm acceptable to the Board. 
 
 Section 5.505    Ancillary Procedures. 
 The procedure, personnel, and system of forms to be used in the purchasing of supplies and 
equipment shall be determined by the General Manager and set forth in clear and concise written form 
consistent with this Article.  The directive shall be made available to employees and be the guide for all 
purchases. 
  
ARTICLE 6 - INVESTMENT POLICY 
 

 Section 5.601    Permitted Investments.  
(a) The General Manager may invest surplus monies of the District without first 
securing further Board approval in the following types of investments: 
  (1) Local Agency Investment Fund of the State of California. 
  (2) Time certificates of deposits issued by a nationally or state-chartered bank or a 
state or federal association located within the State of California if secured by federal insurance or fully 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  21 | P a g e  
 

collateralized at one hundred ten percent (110%) of principal for government securities, collateral and 
one hundred fifty percent (150%) of principal for first mortgage collateral.  No more than thirty percent 
(30%) of the District's general fund investment portfolio or one million dollars ($1,000,000), whichever is 
less, shall be invested in any single institution.  For investments greater than one hundred thousand 
dollars ($100,000), the institution shall maintain one hundred million dollars ($100,000,000) in assets.  
For investments greater than three hundred thousand dollars ($300,000), the institution shall maintain 
at least three hundred million dollars ($300,000,000) in assets.  The institution shall maintain a net 
worth to asset ratio of at least two and one half percent (2.5%) and a positive earnings record for at 
least four (4) years. 
  (3) United States treasury notes, bonds, bills, or certificates of indebtedness or 
those for which the full faith and credit of the United States are pledged for payment of principal and 
interest. 
  (4) Passbook Saving Account secured by federal insurance or collateralized in 
   the same manner as certificates of deposit. 
(b) The Board may authorize the General Manager to invest surplus monies of the 
 District in the following additional types of investment: 
  (1) Bonds issued by the District. 
  (2) Registered state warrants or treasury notes or bonds of the State of 
 California or by a department board, agency, or authority of the State. 
  (3) Bonds, notes, warrants for other evidences of indebtedness of any local 
 agency within this state. 
  (4) Obligations issued by banks or cooperatives, federal land banks, federal 
intermediate credit banks, federal home loan banks, the Federal Home Loan Bank Board, the Tennessee 
Valley Authority, or in obligations, participation  or other instruments of or issued by or fully guaranteed 
as to principal and interest by the Federal National Mortgage Association; or in guaranteed portions of 
Small Business Administration notes; or in obligations, participation or other instruments of, or issued by 
a federal agency, or a United States Government sponsored enterprise. 
  (5) Time certificates of deposit issued by a nationally or state-chartered bank 
 or a state or federal association located outside of the State of California if secured by federal 
insurance. 
 (c) No investment shall be purchased: 
  (1) On margin; 
  (2) "Forward" or "in the future"; 
  (3) Which are based upon foreign currency; 
  (4) Which are shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management  
companies as described in Government Code Section 53601(l); 
  (5) Which are inverse floaters, range notes, interest only strips derived from a pool 
of mortgages or any security resulting in zero (0) interest if held to maturity. 
 (d) Investments may be short-term or long-term in nature.  Long-term investments are 
those which comply with the requirements of Government Code Sections 53601 et seq. and with a 
maturity date greater than five (5) years from the date of purchase.  No long-term investment shall be 
made unless the Board has granted express authority to make that investment either specifically or as a 
part of an investment program no less than three months prior to the investment purchase date.” 
 
 Section 5.602   Investments. 
          (a)     The General Manager shall invest the monies of the District taking into consideration: first, 
the safety of the investment; second, the liquidity of the investment; and third, the yield of the 
investment. 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  22 | P a g e  
 

          (b)     The General Manager shall present a quarterly report to the Board showing the status of all 
investments as required by law. 
          (c)      The District's Investment Policy shall be reviewed annually. 
 
 Section 5.603    Delegation of Authority  
Government Code Section 53600 et seq. delegates the authority to invest public funds to the Board for 
subsequent re-delegation to the General Manager.  Investments shall be limited to instruments in which 
the General Manager has been authorized to invest by the Board as follows: 
          (a)      Inactive Public Deposits (must be backed by one hundred ten percent (110%) of amount of 
deposit in security pool or federal deposit insurance); 
          (b)      Federal Funds;  
          (c)      Local Agency Investment Fund (limited to total investment of five million dollars 
($5,000,000)); 
          (d)      Certificate of Deposit (limited to total investment of ten million dollars ($10,000,000); and          
(e)       Bank Savings Accounts (for use over weekends/holidays).” 
 
 Section 5.604    Inactive Public Deposits. 
           (a)      The General Manager has authority under the Government Code to place surplus 
money in collateralized, inactive public deposits without direction of the Board, but inactive public 
deposits shall be considered part of the investment program. 
            (b)      The following criteria will be used in evaluating financial institutions eligible for 
deposits: 
                          (1) Should be financially sound, insured, and in business for at least five (5) years. 
                          (2) Should be willing to post collateral, either individually or in a pool, equal to one 
hundred ten percent (110%) of all District deposits. 
                          (3) Should have excellent reputation within the area. 
                          (4) When the above factors are equal, appropriate consideration will be given to a 
financial institution that bids on or makes a substantial investment in Big Bear Municipal Water District's 
bonds, or contributes service or significant assistance to Big Bear Municipal Water District.” 
 
 Section 5.605    Reporting Requirements. 
 The General Manager shall submit quarterly and annual reports of investments to the Board. 
 
 Section 5.606   Diversification. 
           (a)     The investments in Federal agency obligations shall not exceed two-thirds of  
 investments immediately after such investment is made. 
           (b)     Investments in the Local Agency Investment Fund of the State of California shall 
 not exceed five million dollars ($5,000,000). 
           (c)      Investments in the Certificate of Deposit shall not exceed ten million dollars ($10,000,000). 
           (d)     Collateralized inactive public deposits shall be limited to not exceed two-thirds of  
investments in effect immediately after such deposit is made, and no more than two-thirds of such 
deposits be in one (1) institution immediately after such deposit is made. 
 
 Section 5.607    Adoption of Investment Policy. 
            The investment policy shall be reviewed by the Board of Board Members annually, and as 
frequently as necessary, to enable the General Manager to respond to changing market conditions. 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  23 | P a g e  
 

  
 

CHAPTER 6.  ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW OF DISTRICT PROJECTS 
ARTICLE 1 – GENERAL 
 

 Section 6.101   General.  
 District projects shall be undertaken with due regard for the environmental consequences as 
required by this Chapter.  
 
 Section 6.102  Purpose. 
 (a) The regulations contained in this Chapter implement the guidelines promulgated by the 
Secretary of Resources (hereinafter “State Guidelines”) for local agencies to satisfy the California 
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”).  
 (b) This Chapter applies if the District has discretion over an activity and:  
  (1) The activity is directly undertaken by the District, 
  (2) The activity is financed in whole or in part by the District, or  
  (3)  A private activity requires approval from the District.  
 
 Section 6.103  Scope. 
 (a) Environmental documents shall be prepared by a lead agency and considered by 
responsible agencies before a decision is made to proceed with a project. The District will sometimes act 
as the lead agency and sometimes act as a responsible agency.   
 (b) These guidelines set forth the process for determining:  
  (1) Whether the District is a lead agency or responsible agency; 
  (2) The District’s duties as a responsible agency; and 
  (3) The District’s duties as a lead agency. 
 
 Section 6.104  Delegation of Responsibilities.  
 (a) The General Manager or designee shall:   
  (1) Determine whether the District is a lead agency or responsible agency.  
  (2) Determine whether an activity is exempt or a project subject to review.   
  (3)  Conduct an initial study.  
  (4) Prepare or cause a negative declaration or environmental impact report (“EIR”) 
to be prepared. 
  (5) Respond to public comments.  
  (6)  Provide required notices.  
  (7) Respond to requests for consultation by lead agencies.  
 (b) The Board shall:  
  (1) Consider, approve, and certify an exemption certificate, negative declaration, 
draft and final EIR prior to approving a project.   
  (2) Make findings as required by law.  
 
 
 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  24 | P a g e  
 

ARTICLE  2.  ROLE OF DISTRICT AS RESPONSIBLE AGENCY 
 
 Section 6.201  Lead Agency Concept. 
 The lead agency shall prepare the negative declaration or EIR for a project carried out or 
approved by more than one public agency. The determination of which agency is the lead agency shall 
be made after consultation in accordance with criteria set forth in the State Guidelines.  
 
 Section 6.202  Consultation with Lead Agency. 
 (a) When the District is a responsible agency, the General Manager shall respond to 
requests for consultation and assist the lead agency in preparing adequate environmental documents.  
 (b) As soon as possible, but not longer than forty-five (45) days after receiving a notice of 
preparation from the lead agency, the General Manager shall send a written reply by certified mail. The 
reply shall specify the scope and content of the environmental information relevant to the District’s 
statutory responsibilities in connection with the proposed project.   
 (c) Prior to the close of the public review period for a draft EIR or mitigated negative 
declaration, the General Manager shall submit complete and detailed objectives for mitigation measures 
addressing significant environmental effects identified by the General Manager, or refer the lead agency 
to appropriate readily available guidelines or reference documents. 
 
 Section 6.203  Challenge to Lead Agency. 
 If the General Manager believes the final EIR or negative declaration prepared by the lead 
agency is not adequate for use by the District, the District must:   
 (a) Take the issue to court within thirty (30) days after the lead agency files a notice of 
determination; or   
 (b) Prepare a subsequent EIR if permitted under the State Guidelines.  
 
 Section 6.204  Use of Environmental Documents. 
 (a) Prior to reaching a decision on the project, the Board must consider the environmental 
effects of the project as shown in the lead agency’s EIR or negative declaration.  
 (b) When an EIR has been prepared for a project, the Board shall not approve the project as 
proposed if the Board finds any feasible alternative or feasible mitigation measures within its powers 
would substantially lessen any significant environmental impact. When considering alternatives and 
mitigation measures, the District is more limited than a lead agency. The District has responsibility for 
mitigating or avoiding only the environmental effects of those activities which it decides to carry out, 
finance, or approve.   
 (c) The Board shall make the findings required for each significant effect of the project.  
 (d) The District shall file a notice of determination in the same manner as a lead agency 
except the District does not need to state the EIR or negative declaration complies with CEQA. The 
District shall state it considered the EIR or negative declaration as prepared by a lead agency. 
 
ARTICLE 3. ROLE OF DISTRICT AS LEAD AGENCY 
 
 Section 6.301  General.  
 The District is a lead agency when a project is only approved or carried out by the District or 
when the District has been designated the lead agency. This Article describes the process used by the 
District when acting as a lead agency. 
 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  25 | P a g e  
 

 Section 6.302  Review of Application for Completeness.  
 The General Manager shall determine whether an application for a permit or other entitlement 
for use is complete within thirty (30) days from the receipt of the application. If no written 
determination of the completeness of the application is made within that period, the application will be 
deemed complete on the thirtieth (30th) day. 
 
 Section 6.303  Initial Review.  
 (a) If the General Manager determines a project is exempt, or an emergency, he shall 
prepare a notice of exemption.  The notice shall be filed after approval of the project and include:  
  (1) A brief description of the project;    
  (2) A finding that the project is exempt, including a citation to the State Guidelines 
section under which it is found to be exempt; and   
  (3) A brief statement of reasons to support the finding.  
 (b) Unless an exemption applies or unless the General Manager determines an EIR is 
required for the project, the General Manager shall conduct an “initial study” to determine whether the 
project may have a significant effect on the environment.  An initial study shall contain in brief form:   
  (1) A description of the project including the location of the project;  
  (2) An identification of the environmental setting; 
  (3) An identification of environmental effects by use of a checklist, matrix, or other 
method;  
  (4) A discussion of ways to mitigate the significant effects identified, if any;  
  (5) An examination of whether the project would be consistent with existing 
zoning, plans, and other applicable land use controls; and 
  (6) The name of the person or persons who prepared or participated in the initial 
study.  
 (c) When the General Manager determines an initial study will be required for the project, 
the General Manager shall consult informally with responsible agencies and trustee agencies responsible 
for resources affected by the project to obtain the recommendations of those agencies whether an EIR 
or a negative declaration should be prepared.   
 
 Section 6.304  Negative Declaration.  
 (a) A negative declaration shall be prepared for a nonexempt project when:   
  (1) The initial study shows there is no substantial evidence the project may have a 
significant effect on the environment, or  
  (2) The initial study identifies potentially significant effects but the project has been 
revised by changes in project plans or an enforcement commitment to mitigation measures to avoid or 
mitigate the effects to a point where clearly no significant effects would occur.  
 (b) Before approving a negative declaration as a lead agency, the General Manager shall 
consult with responsible agencies and trustee agencies concerned with the project.  This consultation 
may take place during the public review period for the proposed negative declaration.  
 (c) The draft negative declaration shall include:  
  (1) A brief description of the project; including a commonly used name for the 
project if any;  
  (2) The location of the project and the name of the project proponent; 
  (3) A finding the project will not have a significant effect on the environment; 
  (4) An attached copy of the Initial Study documenting reasons to support the 
finding; and 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  26 | P a g e  
 

  (5) Mitigation measures, if any, to avoid potentially significant effects. 
 (d) Notice of the preparation of a proposed negative declaration shall be provided to the 
public at least thirty (30) days prior to submission to the Board.  The review period on the notice shall be 
long enough to provide the public with sufficient time to respond to the proposed finding before the 
negative declaration is approved.  Notice shall be given to organizations and individuals who previously 
requested such notice.  Notice shall be given in one or more of the following ways as determined by the 
General Manager:  
  (1) Publication once in a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by 
the proposed project;  
  (2) Posting by the Agency on and off site where the project is to be located; and  
  (3) Direct mail notice to property owners contiguous to the project as shown on the 
latest equalized assessment roll.  
 (e) At the time and place stated in the notice and prior to approving the project, the Board 
shall consider the negative declaration and comments received during the public review process.  The 
Board may approve the negative declaration if it finds on the basis of the initial study and comments 
there is no substantial evidence the project will have a significant effect on the environment.   
 (f) With a private project, the negative declaration must be completed and ready for 
approval within a reasonable amount of time from when the lead agency accepted the application as 
complete.  
 (g) The General Manager shall file a notice of determination with the County Clerk after the 
Board decides to carry out or approve a project for which a negative declaration has been approved.  
 
 Section 6.305  Environmental Impact Report. 
 (a) The General Manager shall prepare or cause an environmental impact report (“EIR”) to 
be prepared if the General Manager determines there is substantial evidence the project may have a 
significant effect on the environment.    
 (b) Immediately after deciding an EIR is required, the General Manager shall send each 
responsible agency a “notice of preparation” stating an EIR will be prepared.  This notice shall also be 
sent to every federal agency involved in approving or funding the project and to each trustee agency 
responsible for natural resources affected by the project.  The General Manager may begin work on the 
draft EIR immediately without awaiting responses to the notice of preparation.  A draft EIR may be 
revised based on responses to the notice of preparation.  The General Manager shall not circulate a 
draft EIR for public review before the time period for responses to the notice of preparation has expired.  
When a state agency is a responsible agency or a trustee agency, the General Manager shall send a 
notice of preparation to each state responsible agency and each trustee agency with a copy to the State 
Clearinghouse in the Office of Planning and Research.  The State Clearinghouse will ensure the state 
responsible agencies and trustees reply to the lead agency within the required time.  
 (c) Prior to completing the draft EIR, the General Manager may consult with any person or 
organization concerned with the environmental effects of the project. This early consultation is called 
“scoping.”  Scoping is mandatory when preparing an EIR/EIS jointly with a federal agency.  The General 
Manager shall convene a meeting with responsible agency representatives to discuss the scope and 
content of the environmental information a responsible agency will need in the EIR within thirty (30) 
days after receiving a request for the meeting.   
 (d) The General Manager may choose one of the following arrangements or a combination 
for preparing a draft EIR:   
  (1) Preparing the draft EIR directly with staff;  
  (2) Contracting with another entity, public or private, to prepare the draft EIR;  



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  27 | P a g e  
 

  (3) Accepting a draft prepared by another entity, either the applicant, a consultant 
retained by the applicant, or other person independent review and analysis; or 
  (4) Using a previously prepared EIR.   
 (e) A draft EIR sent out for public review must reflect the independent judgment of the 
General Manager. The General Manager is responsible for the adequacy and objectivity of the draft EIR.  
 (f) A notice of completion must be filed with the Secretary for Resources when the draft 
EIR is completed.  If the EIR is reviewed through the review process handled by the State Clearinghouse, 
the cover form required by the State Clearinghouse will serve as the notice of completion, and no notice 
of completion need be sent to the Resources Agency.  With a private project, the lead agency shall 
complete and certify the final EIR within one year after the lead agency accepts the application as 
complete.  An unreasonable delay by an applicant in providing information requested by the lead agency 
for the preparation of a negative declaration or an EIR shall suspend the running of the time periods for 
the period of the delay.  At the request of an applicant, the lead agency may waive the one (1) year time 
limit for completing and certifying a final EIR or the reasonable amount of time extended under section 
6.304, subdivision f for completing a negative declaration if:  
  (1) The project will be subject to CEQA and to the National Environmental Policy 
Act;  
  (2) Additional time will be required to prepare a combined EIR-EIS or combined 
negative declaration-finding of no significant impact as provided herein; and   
  (3) The time required to prepare the combined document will be shorter than the 
time required to prepare the documents separately. 
 (f) The time limits for taking final action on a permit for a development project may also be 
waived where a combined EIR-EIS will be prepared.  The time limits for processing permits for 
development projects under Government Code Sections 65950 shall not apply if federal statutes or 
regulations requires time schedules which exceed the state time limits.  
 (g) The District shall provide notice of the availability of a draft EIR at the same time as it 
sends a notice of completion to the Resources Agency.  Notice shall be given to organizations and 
individuals previously requesting notice by at least one (1) of the following procedures:   
  (1) Publication at least one (1) time in a newspaper of general circulation in the 
area affected by the proposed project;   
  (2) Posting of notice on and off the site in the area where the project is to be 
located; or    
  (3) Direct mailing to owners of property contiguous to the project as those owners 
are shown on the latest equalized assessment roll. 
 (h) Review periods for draft EIRs should not be less than thirty (30) days nor longer than 
ninety (90) days except in unusual situations.  The review period for draft EIRs when a state agency is a 
responsible agency shall be at least forty-five (45) days unless a shorter period is approved by the State 
Clearinghouse.  The District shall use the State Clearinghouse to distribute draft EIRs for review and 
should use area wide clearinghouses to distribute the documents to regional and local agencies.  
 (i) The District shall consult with and request comments on the draft EIR from:   
  (1) Responsible agencies;  
  (2) Trustee agencies with resources affected by the project; and   
  (3) Other state, federal, and local agencies which exercise authority over resources 

 which may be affected by the project.  
 (j) The Board shall evaluate comments on the draft EIR and prepare a written response.  
 (k) The final EIR shall include:   
  (1) The draft EIR or a revision of the draft; 
  (2) Comments and recommendations received on the draft EIR verbatim or in 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  28 | P a g e  
 

summary; 
(3) A list of persons, organizations, and public agencies commenting on the draft 

EIR; 
  (4) The responses of the Lead Agency to significant environmental points raised in 

 the review and consultation process; and 
  (5) The Board shall certify the final EIR is completed in compliance with CEQA and 

the Board has reviewed and considered the information contained in the EIR 
prior to approving the project.  

(l) The General Manager shall file a notice of determination following each project 
approval for which an EIR was considered.  The notice shall include:   
(1) As identification of the project, including its common name where possible, and 

its location;  
  (2) A brief description of the project;  
  (3) The date when the Board approved the project;  
  (4) The determination of the Board whether the project in its approved form will 

 have a significant effect on the environment;  
(5) A statement an EIR was prepared and certified pursuant to the provisions of 

CEQA;  
(6) A description of the mitigation measures and method of monitoring the 

mitigation measures;  
  (7) Whether a statement of overriding considerations was adopted for the project; 

 and  
  (8) The address where a copy of the EIR and the record of project approval may be 

 examined.  
 
 Section 6.306 Use of Environmental Documents.  
 The District shall not approve or carry out a project as proposed unless significant effects are 
reduced to an acceptable level.  The Board shall make one (1) or more written findings for each 
significant effect, accompanied by a statement of the facts supporting each finding.  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  29 | P a g e  
 

CHAPTER 7.  MISCELLANEOUS 
ARTICLE 1 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE 
 

 Section 7.101    Purpose. 
 The Political Reform Act, Government Code Sections 8100 et seq., requires state and local 
government agencies to adopt and promulgate Conflict of Interest Codes.  The Fair Political Practices 
Commission has adopted  2 California Code of Regs. Section 18730, which contains the terms of a 
standard Conflict of Interest Code, which can be incorporated by reference, and which may be amended 
by the Fair Political Practices Commission to conform to amendments in the Political Reform Act after 
public notice and hearings.  Therefore, the terms of 2 California Code of Regs. Section 18730 and any 
amendments to it duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission are hereby incorporated by 
reference and constitute the Conflict of Interest Code of the District. 
 
 Section 7.102    Designated Positions and Categories of Disclosure. 
 (a) Category 1 –  Persons in this category shall disclose all interests in real property within 
the jurisdiction.  Real property shall be deemed to be within the jurisdiction if the property or any part 
of it is located within or not more than two (2) miles outside the boundaries of the jurisdiction or within 
two (2) miles of any land owned or used by the agency.  Persons shall not be required to disclose 
property used primarily as their residence or for personal recreational purposes. 
 (b) Category 2 – Persons in this category shall disclose all investments.  "Investment" means 
any financial interest in a security issued by a business entity, including but not limited to common 
stock, preferred stock, rights, warrants, options debt instruments and any partnership or other 
ownership interest, if the business entity or any parent, subsidiary or otherwise related business entity 
has an interest in real property in the jurisdiction, or does business or plans to do business in the 
jurisdiction, or has done business within the jurisdiction at any time during the two (2) years prior to the 
time any statement or other action is required under this title.  No asset shall be deemed an investment 
unless its fair market value exceeds one thousand dollars ($1,000).  The term "investment" does not 
include a time or demand deposit in a financial institution, shares in a credit union, any insurance policy, 
interest in a diversified mutual fund registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 
Investment Company Act of 1940 or a common trust fund which is created pursuant to Section 1564 of 
the Financial Code, or any bond or other debt instrument issued by any government or government 
agency.  Investments of an individual include a pro rata share of investments of any business entity 
mutual fund or trust in which the individual or spouse owns directly, indirectly or beneficially, a ten 
percent interest or greater (Government Code Section 82034). 
 (c) Category 3 –  Persons in this category shall disclose all income received from any source 
located or doing business within the jurisdiction or expecting to do business within the jurisdiction.  
Income received from a public agency need not be disclosed. 
 (d) Category 4 – Persons in this category shall disclose all income from and investments in 
businesses that provide or sell services or supplies of the type associated with the job assignment and 
utilized by the agency. 
 (e) Category 5 – Persons in this category shall disclose all income from and investments in 
businesses that provide, manufacture or sell services, supplies, provisions or other property of a type 
utilized by the agency in an aggregate amount of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) or more per annum. 
 (f) Category 6 –  Persons in this category shall disclose interest in categories assigned to the 
designated position for whom the consultant is performing the duties and as required by the General 
Manager. 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  30 | P a g e  
 

 Public Official Designated Category to be Disclosed 
 Board Members  1, 5 
 General Manager  1, 2, 3 
 General Counsel  1, 2, 3 
 Consultants   6 
 
 Section 7.103    Filing of Disclosure Statements. 
 (a) All officials and employees required to submit a statement of economic interest shall file 
their statement with the General Manager, or his or her designee.  The District shall make and retain a 
copy of all statements filed by its Board Members and General Manager, and forward the originals of 
such statements to the Executive Office of the Board of Supervisors of San Bernardino County.  
 (b) The District shall retain the originals of statements for all other designated positions 
named in the conflict of interest code.  All retained statements, original or copied, shall be available for 
public inspection and reproduction pursuant to Government Code section 81008. 
 
 Section 7.104    Ethical Behavior. 
 Officers and employees shall disclose potential conflicts of interest and shall not participate in 
decisions which could materially affect a financial interest. 
  
ARTICLE 2 - RECORDS INSPECTION 
 
 Section 7.201    Purpose and Scope. 
 This Article provides criteria and procedures for the public inspection of District records under 
the Public Records Act (“Act”).  This Article may be cited as the District's "Regulations for the Public 
Inspection of District Records". 
 
 Section 7.202    Definitions. 
 As used in this Article: 
 (a) “Public Records” includes any writing containing information relating to the conduct of 
District's business prepared, owned, used, or retained by the District regardless of physical form or 
characteristics. 
 (b) “Writing” means any handwriting, typewriting, printing, photostatting, photographing, 
and every other means of recording upon any form of communication or representation, including 
letters, words, pictures, sounds or symbols, or combinations thereof, and all papers, maps, magnetic or 
paper tapes, photographic films, and prints, magnetic or punched cards, discs, drums or other 
documents. 
 (c) Emails and texts are “writings” subject to the Act. The Supreme Court of California has 
held that the writings of a public employee may be subject to disclosure under the CPRA when that 
employee uses a personal account or device to communicate about the conduct of public business. 
Therefore, all District employees, officers, and Board Members are advised that the communications 
they make that relate to public business on either District devices and accounts or on personal devices 
and accounts may be subject to production in response to a public records request. Public business 
includes those writings communicated in the course and scope of your employment with the District or 
in your capacity as an elected official. The District recommends that personal devices and accounts be 
used for work-related communications only when necessary. The District may be required to request 
that employees and officials search their own personal files, accounts, and devices for material 
responsive to a public records request. Employees may be asked to submit an affidavit with facts 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  31 | P a g e  
 

sufficient to show that the information is not a “public record” should an Employee’s personal files, 
accounts or devices be subject to a record request. 
 
 Section 7.203    General. 
 District records are open to inspection at all times during the office hours of the District and 
every citizen has a right to inspect any District records, except as hereinafter provided. 
 
 Section 7.204    Exceptions. 
 Nothing in this Article shall be construed to require disclosure of records that are: 
 (a) Preliminary drafts, notes, intra-agency or inter-agency memoranda which are not 
retained by the District in the ordinary course of business, provided that the public interest in 
withholding such records clearly outweighs the public interest in disclosure; 
 (b) Records pertaining to pending litigation to which the District is a party or to claims made 
pursuant to Division 3.6 (commencing with Section 810) of Title 1 of the Government Code, until such 
litigation or claim has been finally adjudicated or otherwise settled; 
 (c) Personnel, medical or similar files, the disclosure of which would constitute an 
unwarranted invasion of personal privacy; 
 (d) Geological, geographic Information system data, and geophysical data, plant production 
data and similar information relating to utility systems development which are obtained in confidence 
from any person; 
 (e) Test questions, scoring keys, and other examination data use to administer 
examinations for employment; 
 (f) The contents of real estate appraisals, engineering or feasibility estimates and 
evaluations made for or by the District relative to the acquisition of property, or to prospective supply 
and construction contracts, until such time as all property has been acquired or all of the contract 
agreement obtained, provided, however, the law of eminent domain shall not be affected by this 
provision; 
 (g) Records the disclosure of which is exempted or prohibited pursuant to provisions of 
Federal or State law, including, but not limited to, provisions of the Evidence Code relating to privilege; 
 (h) Records not subject to disclosure under the Act.   
 
 Section 7.205    Additional Public Records. 
 Notwithstanding the foregoing: 
 (a) Every employment contract between the District and any public official or public 
employee is a public record. 
 (b) An itemized statement of the total expenditures and disbursements of the District 
provided for in Article VI of the California Constitution shall be open for inspection. 
 
 Section 7.206    Justification for Withholding of Records. 
 The District shall justify withholding any records by demonstrating that the record in question is 
exempt under the express provisions of this Article or that on the facts of the particular case the public 
interest served by not making the record public clearly outweighs the public interest served by 
disclosure of the record. 
 
 Section 7.207    Copies of Records. 
 A person may receive a copy of any identifiable District record.  Upon request, an exact copy 
shall be provided in a form determined by the District.  Officers, agents and employees of the District 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  32 | P a g e  
 

are not required to comply with this section to obtain documents when acting within the course and 
scope of District employment or office holding. 
 
 Section 7.208    Public Counter Files. 
 (a) The General Manager shall maintain a duplicate copy of all approved minutes, the 
agenda for the next scheduled Board meeting and any written material distributed to members of the 
Board for discussion or consideration at the next scheduled Board meeting, at the public counter 
located in the District's offices, provided any writing exempt from public exposure pursuant to the Public 
Record Act shall not be maintained at the public counter, provided, further, writing which are public 
records and which are discussed during a public meeting but which were not previously available shall 
be made available prior to the commencement of, and during, their discussion at such meeting and shall 
be made available for public inspection immediately or as soon thereafter as practicable. 
 (b) No charge will be imposed upon any person for the use of the records described in this 
section, unless a copy thereof is requested in which case the charges set forth herein shall be imposed. 
 (c) The General Manager shall also maintain a record of all requests for inspection from the 
public that are declined for reasons set forth in this Article. 
 
 Section 7.209    Inspection by Board Members. 
 Notwithstanding any other provision in this Article to the contrary, all records of the District, 
including records excluded from public inspection by virtue of the provisions hereof, shall be made 
available for inspection by any member of the Board at all reasonable times.  No fee or charge shall be 
imposed upon any member of the Board for obtaining a copy of such record or for any search relating to 
the location of such record. 
 
 Section 7.210    Other Law. 
 This Article is adopted for the purpose of implementing the provisions contained in Chapter 3.5 
(commencing with Section 6250) of Title 1 of the Government Code.  Nothing herein contained shall be 
deemed to abridge or otherwise modify said provisions. 
  
ARTICLE 3 - RETENTION OF RECORDS 
 
 Section 7.301    Purpose and Scope. 
 This Article provides criteria and procedures for the retention or destruction of District records.  
This Article may be cited as the District's "Regulations for the Retention of District Records". 
 
 Section 7.302    Retention of Original Records. 
 The following original records shall be maintained in perpetuity in the District's files: 
 (a) The Certificate of Incorporation of the District; 
 (b) Any certification of annexation proceedings; 
 (c) Any certificate of the Secretary of State reciting the filing of annexation papers by the 
District in his office; 
 (d) Any certification by the Secretary of State that detachment papers have been received 
and that he has excluded area from the District; 
 (e) Resolutions and Ordinances; 
 (f) Minutes of Meetings of the Board of Board Members; 
 (g) Certificate of Assessed Valuation prepared by the Auditor of each County in which 
property taxable by the District lies; 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  33 | P a g e  
 

 (h) Documents received from tax assessors detailing District taxes collected; 
 (i) Ballot arguments pro or contra on bond issues; 
 (j) Results of bond propositions received from the canvassing bodies; 
 (k) Results of elections for the office of member of Board of Board Members received from 
the canvassing body; 
 (l) Records of securities acquired with surplus District moneys; 
 (m) Receipts for securities from banks; 
 (n) Documents received relating to claims brought against the District; 
 (o) Documents received pursuant to eminent domain proceedings brought by the District; 
 (p) Records that are determined by the Board of Board Members to be of significant and 
lasting historical, administrative, legal, fiscal or research value; and 
 (q) Records required by law to be filed and preserved. 
 
 Section 7.303    Retention of Duplicate Original Records. 
 The following original records, copy of such original record, shall be maintained in perpetuity in 
the District's files: 
 (a) Financial record summarizing the financial status of the District other than reports 
prepared pursuant to Article 9 (commencing with Section 53891) of Part 1 of Division 2 of the 
Government Code; 
 (b) Records affecting title to land or liens thereon; 
 (c) Oaths of Office and related materials depicting the authenticity of the appointment of 
any Board Member or officer of the District; 
 (d) Paid vouchers with attached documents, summary of collections, registers of demands 
issued and journals of warrants paid, provided the original thereof has been maintained in the District's 
files for a period of five (5) years; 
 (e) Reports of the District in correspondence not covered in any other section of this 
Article; and 
 (f) Records received pursuant to state statute which are not expressly required by law to 
be filed and preserved. 
 
 Section 7.304    Retention of Record for Time Certain. 
 The following original records may be destroyed after the passage of time, as indicated, without 
the maintenance of a microfilm copy thereof: 
 (a) Unaccepted bids or proposals for construction may be destroyed without microfilming 
after two (2) years; 
 (b) Work orders or in-house records of time spent on various District work assignments may 
be destroyed without microfilming after two (2) years; 
 (c) Records created for a specific event or action may be destroyed without microfilming 
after five (5) years following the end of the fiscal year in which the event or action was completed, 
unless there is pending litigation involving the records; 
 (d) Canceled checks for the payment of bond interest and redemption may be destroyed by 
an executive officer without microfilming after ten (10) years; 
 (e) Tapes and records of minutes of the Board of Board Members may be erased thirty (30) 
days after approval of minutes; 
 (f) Any record, paper or document which is more than two (2) years old and which was 
prepared or received in any manner other than pursuant to state statute. 



 

Admin Code Resultion 2023-07, 12/21/2023  34 | P a g e  
 

 Section 7.305    Retention of Other Records. 
 The following records may be destroyed at any time without the maintenance of a microfilm 
copy thereof: 
 (a) All duplicates, the original or a permanent photographic record of which is on file; 
 (b) Rough drafts, notes and working papers accumulated in the preparation of a 
communication, study or other document, unless of a formal nature contributing significantly to the 
preparation of the document representing the work of any department of the District, after the contents 
thereof have been transferred to other records; 
 (c) Cards, listings, non-permanent indices, other papers used for controlling work and 
transitory files including letters of transmittal, suspense letters and tracer letters; 
 (d) Canceled coupon sheets from registered bonds; and 
 (e) Shorthand note books, telephone messages and inter departmental notes. 
 
 Section 7.306    Other Laws. 
 Provisions of this Article are intended to implement the provisions of Chapter 7 (commencing 
with Section 60200) of Division 2, Title 6 of the Government Code.  Nothing herein contained shall be 
deemed to abridge or amend said provisions. 
 
 



BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 
MEETING DATE:   December 21, 2023                             AGENDA ITEM: 6B 
SUBJECT: 
THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE (DIRECTORS LUDECKE & BREWSTER) RECOMMENDS THE 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK FOR FULL BOARD APPROVAL WHICH INCLUDES EMPLOYEE LAW 
CHANGES THAT GO INTO EFFECT JANUARY 2024 AND LANGUAGE PREVIOUSLY SEEN IN THE 
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
The Administrative Committee recommend that the updated Employee Handbook be approved 
by the full Board. 
 
DISCUSSION/FINDINGS:  
The District has always had a “Seasonal Employee Handbook” and a “Full-Time Employee 
Handbook” our counsel team suggested this become one document and have all the policy 
related items from the Administrative Code be shown solely in this combined document. This 
handbook also incorporated employment law changes and updated protected class language to 
remain in compliance with California employment law. 
 
If approved today, the Employee Handbook changes will take effect immediately.  
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:   None 
 
FINANCING: None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     Submitted by:  Brittany Lamson, Interim General Manager 
  



 

 



 

  1 

 

Contents 
I  INTRODUCTORY POLICIES .......................................................................................................................... 5 

INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT .................................................................................................................... 5 

RIGHT TO REVISE ....................................................................................................................................... 5 

AT‐WILL EMPLOYMENT STATUS ............................................................................................................... 5 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY ...................................................................................................... 6 

Equal Opportunity ................................................................................................................................. 6 

II EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES .................................................................................................. 7 

CATEGORIES OF EMPLOYMENT ................................................................................................................ 7 

FULL‐TIME EMPLOYEES ......................................................................................................................... 7 

SEASONAL EMPLOYEES ......................................................................................................................... 7 

JOB DUTIES ................................................................................................................................................ 7 

OPERATING HOURS ................................................................................................................................... 7 

MEAL AND REST PERIODS ......................................................................................................................... 7 

BREAK ROOM ............................................................................................................................................ 8 

SMOKING POLICY ...................................................................................................................................... 8 

TIMEKEEPING REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................................................. 8 

PUNCTUALITY AND ATTENDANCE ............................................................................................................. 9 

WAGES .................................................................................................................................................... 10 

PAYMENT OF WAGES .......................................................................................................................... 10 

ADVANCES OF WAGES ........................................................................................................................ 10 

OVERTIME ........................................................................................................................................... 10 

EMERGENCY CALL‐OUT/IN. ................................................................................................................. 10 

INCLEMENT WEATHER/NATURAL DISASTER ....................................................................................... 10 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS ........................................................................................................... 11 

COMPENSATION ................................................................................................................................. 11 

OPEN‐DOOR POLICY ................................................................................................................................ 11 

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST ......................................................................................................................... 11 

OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT .......................................................................................................................... 12 

EMPLOYEES WHO ARE REQUIRED TO DRIVE .......................................................................................... 12 

Cellular Phone and VHF Radio USE AND SAFETY IN DISTRICT VEHICLES ................................................ 13 

Cellular Phones ................................................................................................................................... 13 

Mobile and Handheld VHF Radios ...................................................................................................... 13 



 

  2 

PERSONNEL RECORDS ............................................................................................................................. 14 

EMPLOYEE REFERENCES.......................................................................................................................... 14 

ADMINISTRATIVE GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES .......................................................................................... 14 

GRIEVANCE .......................................................................................................................................... 14 

GRIEVANT ............................................................................................................................................ 14 

GENERAL RULES .................................................................................................................................. 14 

INFORMAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE .................................................................................................. 15 

FORMAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ...................................................................................................... 15 

TECHNOLOGY POLICY .............................................................................................................................. 15 

USES OF DISTRICT SYSTEMS THAT ARE ACCEPTABLE: ........................................................................ 16 

USES THAT ARE UNACCEPTABLE: ........................................................................................................ 16 

IT IS ALSO UNACCEPTABLE TO USE DISTRICT SYSTEMS TO:................................................................ 16 

Electronic Mail (E‐mail) ....................................................................................................................... 16 

SOCIAL NETWORKING ......................................................................................................................... 17 

COMPUTER SOFTWARE POLICY .......................................................................................................... 17 

CONDUCTING PERSONAL BUSINESS ....................................................................................................... 17 

RADIO COMMUNICATIONS ..................................................................................................................... 17 

III STANDARDS OF CONDUCT ...................................................................................................................... 18 

PROHIBITED CONDUCT ........................................................................................................................... 18 

UNLAWFUL HARASSMENT ...................................................................................................................... 18 

Sexual harassment .............................................................................................................................. 19 

Complaint Procedure .......................................................................................................................... 19 

Corrective Action ................................................................................................................................ 19 

No Retaliation ..................................................................................................................................... 20 

Agency Complaint Procedure ............................................................................................................. 20 

WORKPLACE ANTI‐VIOLENCE POLICY ..................................................................................................... 20 

OFF‐DUTY CONDUCT ............................................................................................................................... 20 

DRUG AND ALCOHOL ABUSE .............................................................................................................. 21 

DRESS CODE ............................................................................................................................................ 22 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF .......................................................................................................................... 22 

Causal Day: .............................................................................................................................................. 22 

MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS EMPLOYEES .......................................................................................... 23 

Hair: ..................................................................................................................................................... 23 

Jewelry: ............................................................................................................................................... 23 



 

  3 

CUSTOMER RELATIONS ........................................................................................................................... 23 

CONFIDENTIALITY ............................................................................................................................... 24 

BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS ....................................................................................................... 24 

CELL PHONE REIMBURSEMENT .......................................................................................................... 24 

EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT ................................................................................................................ 24 

AUTOMOBILE EXPENSES ..................................................................................................................... 24 

MEDIA CONTACTS ............................................................................................................................... 25 

IV OPERATIONAL CONSIDERATIONS ........................................................................................................... 26 

WORKPLACE SAFETY ............................................................................................................................... 26 

ERGONOMICS .......................................................................................................................................... 26 

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURES ............................................................................................... 27 

V EMPLOYEE BENEFITS ................................................................................................................................ 28 

HOLIDAYS ................................................................................................................................................ 28 

VACATIONS / PAID TIME OFF (PTO) ........................................................................................................ 29 

Full Time Employees ............................................................................................................................... 29 

SEASONAL EMPLOYEES ........................................................................................................................... 29 

EMPLOYEE PAID SICK TIME ..................................................................................................................... 29 

PAID SICK TIME BUYOUT ......................................................................................................................... 30 

PAID SICK TIME DONATIONS ................................................................................................................... 30 

ADDITIONAL OPTIONAL/UNPAID LEAVE ................................................................................................. 30 

EMPLOYEE INSURANCE BENEFITS ........................................................................................................... 31 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL INSURANCE .................................................................................................... 31 

SOCIAL SECURITY ................................................................................................................................ 32 

WORKERS' COMPENSATION ............................................................................................................... 32 

PREGNANCY‐RELATED DISABILITY LEAVE ........................................................................................... 32 

FAMILY/MEDICAL LEAVE (California Family Rights Act) ..................................................................... 33 

Intermittent Leave .............................................................................................................................. 35 

VICTIMS OF CRIME LEAVE ....................................................................................................................... 35 

TIME OFF FOR VOTING ............................................................................................................................ 35 

VOLUNTEER CIVIL SERVICE PERSONNEL ................................................................................................. 36 

SCHOOL ACTIVITIES ................................................................................................................................. 36 

SCHOOL CONFERENCES INVOLVING SUSPENSION ............................................................................. 36 

SCHOOL ACTIVITIES ............................................................................................................................. 36 

EXTERNAL EMPLOYEE EDUCATION/TRAINING AND REIMBURSEMENT ................................................. 36 



 

  4 

Compensation for Training Time ............................................................................................................ 37 

RECREATIONAL ACTIVITIES AND PROGRAMS ......................................................................................... 37 

SECURITY ................................................................................................................................................. 37 

EMPLOYER PROPERTY ............................................................................................................................. 38 

SOLICITATION AND DISTRIBUTION OF LITERATURE ............................................................................... 38 

CHILDREN AT WORK ................................................................................................................................ 39 

 
 



 

  5 

I  INTRODUCTORY POLICIES 

INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT 

Welcome! As an employee of Big Bear Municipal Water District (the “District”), you are an 
important member of a team effort. We hope that you will find your position with the District 
rewarding, challenging, and productive. 
 
Because our success depends upon the dedication of our employees, we are highly selective in 
choosing new members of our team. We look to you and the other employees to contribute to 
the success of the District. 
 
This employee handbook is intended to provide a summary of the District’s policies applicable to 
ALL employees. Employees are expected to comply with all District policies.  Failure to comply 
with any policy will subject the employee to discipline, which could include termination.   
 
This handbook summarizes the policies and practices in effect at the time of distribution. This 
handbook supersedes all previously issued employee handbooks, and any policy or benefit 
statements or memoranda, that are inconsistent with the policies described here. Human 
Resources will be happy to answer any questions you may have about this handbook.  
 

RIGHT TO REVISE 

Big Bear Municipal Water District reserves the right to revise, modify, delete, or add to any and 
all policies, procedures, work rules, or benefits stated in this handbook except for the policy of 
at‐will employment.  
 
Any changes to this handbook will be distributed to all employees so that employees will be 
aware of any revisions to employment policies or procedures. No oral statements or 
representations alter the provisions of this handbook. 
 

AT‐WILL EMPLOYMENT STATUS 

Big Bear Municipal Water District’s personnel are employed on an at‐will basis. Employment at‐
will may be terminated with or without cause and with or without notice at any time by the 
employee or the District. Nothing in this handbook shall limit the right to terminate at‐will 
employment.  No manager, supervisor, or employee of the District has any authority to enter 
into an agreement for employment for any specified period of time or to make an agreement for 
employment on other than at‐will terms. Only the General Manager has the authority to make 
any such agreement, which is binding only if it is in writing. 
 



 

  6 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY    

Equal Opportunity 

 
The District affords equal opportunity in all aspects of employment to all employees and 
applicants for employment without regard to race, religion (including religious dress or 
grooming), creed, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, reproductive health decision making, 
breastfeeding, or related medical conditions), gender, national origin, ethnicity, ancestry, 
citizenship, age, physical or mental disabilities, color, marital status, registered domestic partner 
status, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, genetic information, medical condition, 
military or veteran status, exercise of rights under the Pregnancy Disability Leave Law or the 
California Family Rights Act, or any other basis protected by applicable law. This policy applies to 
all employees and applicants for employment, and extends to all phases of employment, 
including but not limited to: recruitment, hiring, training, promotion, discharge or layoff, 
rehiring, compensation, and any benefits. 
 
Any applicant or employee who believes they need an accommodation to perform the job 
should contact Human Resources and make such request. The District will conduct an interactive 
meeting with the applicant or employee to discuss possible accommodations, and will provide 
reasonable accommodation in accordance with the law.  
 
  
 
 



 

  7 

II EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES 
 

CATEGORIES OF EMPLOYMENT 

 

FULL‐TIME EMPLOYEES 

Full‐time employees are those who are regularly scheduled to work, and do work, a minimum of 
30 hours per week. Full‐time employees are generally eligible for all employee benefits described 
in this handbook. 
 

SEASONAL EMPLOYEES 

Seasonal employees are those who are generally scheduled to work at the public launch ramps 
as a Lake Ranger I or Lake Ranger II during the boating season, generally April 1st through 
November 30th. Seasonal employees may be eligible for some, but not all, employee benefits 
described in this Handbook. 
 

POLICIES AND PRACTICES 

JOB DUTIES 

Your supervisor will explain your job responsibilities and the performance standards expected of 
you and is available to answer questions you may have regarding job duties and performance 
standards.  Be aware that your job responsibilities may change at any time during your 
employment.  From time to time, you may be asked to work on special projects or to assist with 
other work necessary or important to the operation of your department or the District.   
 

OPERATING HOURS 

The District main office is normally open for business between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:30 
p.m., Monday through Friday. Your supervisor will assign your individual work schedule. The 
public launch ramp offices are open only during the boating season, generally April 1st through 
November 30th. 
 

MEAL AND REST PERIODS 

Employees are provided with one‐half hour duty‐free meal period for each five hours of work in 
a workday.  In some cases, work schedules can be adjusted to provide a longer meal period, up 
to one hour, if approved by the Supervisor.  Employees are allowed one ten‐minute rest period 
for every four hours of work or major portion thereof. Your supervisor will schedule your meal 
and rest periods. 
 



 

  8 

You are expected to observe your assigned working hours and the time allowed for meal and 
rest periods.  Do not leave the premises during your rest period and do not take more than ten 
minutes for each rest period.  You may leave the premises on your meal period, provided you 
return to your workstation timely at the conclusion of the meal period. 
 

BREAK ROOM 

The District has a great kitchen for employees use during breaks and at lunch.  Employees are 
expected to clean up after themselves.  Do not leave any dirty dishes, wipe off the counters, and 
clean the inside of the microwave if there is any splattering of food during cooking.  Cover items 
when using the microwave. 
 

 Coffee/Tea/Hot Chocolate:  These items are available for your use and convenience, so help 
yourself. 

 Making Coffee:  If you find that the coffee in the pot is running low, please make the next pot 
of coffee.  If you're not sure how to make the coffee, ask someone to help you.  When the 
coffee has been made, throw the grounds in the garbage (not in the sink), rinse the basket, 
and place it in the sink for the next person to use. 

 Refrigerator:  The refrigerator is available for your convenience.  However, there are many 
employees using it, so please limit the amount of items you put inside.  Also, the refrigerator 
is cleaned out every Friday afternoon, so please throw away any old items and take home 
any dishes, Tupperware, etc., that belong to you.  If you have items that you want to keep 
past the regular clean out day, please put your name on them.  Do not help yourself to items 
you did not bring. 

 

SMOKING POLICY 

Smoking/Vaping is not allowed anywhere inside any District facilities, District vehicles, 
equipment or on any District boats or vessels.   
 
Smoking/Vaping is allowed in designated areas. The designated smoking areas for each District 
location are outlined below. Yellow receptacles will be made available for employees who smoke 
outside in designated areas on District property. 
 

Main Office Designated Area: outside to the west side of the shop at the provided 
smoking/Vaping location. 

 
East Ramp Designated Area: picnic bench to the west of decontamination station A.  

 
West Ramp Designated Area: the area north/east of the water storage tank. 

 

TIMEKEEPING REQUIREMENTS 

All non‐exempt employees are required to accurately record all time worked, including overtime, 
on an approved time sheet for payroll purposes.  



 

  9 

 
Employees must clock in and clock out using the District approved Human Resources 
Management System (HRMS). Clocking in and clocking out must be done while on District 
property using a District approved device.  
 
Employees who wish to request time off, subject to approval from their supervisor, must also 
use the HRMS to make such request. Employees are responsible to check the system to ensure 
requested time off is approved and entered into the HRMS in advance of taking time off.  
 
Employees also must record their time whenever they leave the building for any reason other 
than the District’s business, except for authorized break times.  Changing or altering another 
employee’s timesheet without authorization is not permitted. 
 
Any errors on your timesheet should be reported in writing immediately to your supervisor. 
 

PUNCTUALITY AND ATTENDANCE 

As an employee of the District, you are expected to be punctual and regular in attendance.  
Tardiness and continued absence may cause problems for District employees and supervisors, as 
the work must still be completed, regardless of employee absence. 
 
Employees are expected to report to work as scheduled, on time and prepared to start work.  
Employees also are expected to remain at work for their entire work schedule, except for meal 
and rest periods or when required to leave on authorized District business.  Late arrival, early 
departure or other unauthorized absences from scheduled hours are disruptive and should be 
avoided. 
 
If you are unable to report for work on any particular day, you must call your supervisor at least 
one hour before your scheduled starting time.  If you call less than one hour before your 
scheduled time to begin work, you may be considered tardy for that day.  In all cases of absence 
or tardiness, employees must provide their supervisor with an honest reason or explanation.  
Employees also must inform their supervisor of the expected duration of any absence.  Unless 
the employee is granted an authorized leave of absence, employees are required to call in on 
any day they cannot report to work as scheduled. 
 
Excessive and/or pattern absenteeism or tardiness, as determined at the sole discretion of the 
District, is not tolerated. 
 
If you fail to report for work without any notification to your supervisor and your absence 
continues for a period of three days, the District may assume that you have voluntarily 
terminated your employment by abandoning your position. 
 
 
 



 

  10 

WAGES 

 

PAYMENT OF WAGES 

District employees are paid every two weeks on Thursday for work performed during the 
previous two‐week pay period.  Forty hours constitutes a normal workweek.  The workday (a 
consecutive 24‐hour period) begins at 12:01 a.m. and ends at midnight.  The workweek begins 
on Thursday at 12:01 a.m. and ends on the following Wednesday at midnight. 
 
Paid or unpaid time off, whether for duty‐free meal periods or any other unworked time, is not 
included in calculating the number of hours worked for overtime purposes. 
 
If a regular payday falls on a holiday, employees will be paid on the preceding workday. 
 
Employees who do not participate in Direct Deposit will have their paychecks normally available 
by 8:00 a.m. (every other Thursday) at the District main office. If there is an error on your check, 
please report it immediately to your supervisor. 
 

ADVANCES OF WAGES 

The District does not permit advances against paychecks or against unaccrued paid time off. 
 

OVERTIME 

As necessary, non‐exempt employees may be required to work overtime.  For purposes of 
calculating overtime, only actual hours worked are counted.   
 
The District attempts to distribute overtime evenly and to accommodate individual schedules.  
All overtime work must be previously authorized by a supervisor.  All hours worked in excess of 
40 hours in one workweek are treated as overtime. Overtime is compensated at time and a half 
the regular rate. 
 

EMERGENCY CALL‐OUT/IN.   

Whenever an employee is called out/in on an emergency basis when otherwise off‐duty, the 
employee shall be entitled to at least two (2) hours of pay at the regular hourly rate.  Time worked 
on a call‐out after the first 2 hours is compensated at their regular hourly rate compensation.   Any 
portion of the call‐out which places the employee over 40 hours in the workweek shall be paid at 
time and one‐half the regular rate.  
 

INCLEMENT WEATHER/NATURAL DISASTER 

If inclement weather or natural disaster make it impossible for an employee to reach the 
workplace, time off shall be unpaid.  Supervisors will attempt to schedule make‐up time if 



 

  11 

requested by the employee and if feasible during the same pay period.  If no make‐up time 
occurs, employees may use accrued vacation during the otherwise unpaid time off. 
 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS 

Supervisors complete performance reviews on employees and discuss the reviews with the 
applicable employee.  Performance evaluations are conducted at least annually on or about the 
last month in the fiscal year.  The frequency of performance evaluations may vary depending 
upon length of service, job position, past performance, changes in job duties or recurring 
performance problems. 
 
Your performance evaluations may include a review of factors such as the quality and quantity of 
the work you perform, your knowledge of the job, your initiative, your work attitude and your 
attitude toward others.  The performance evaluation should help you become aware of your 
progress, areas for improvement, and objectives or goals for future work performance. 
 
Positive performance evaluations do not guarantee increases in salary or promotions.   

COMPENSATION 

Merit step increases and promotions are solely within the discretion of the District and depend 
upon many factors in addition to performance.  There are no automatic step increases, and no 
guarantee of wage increase at any time. 
 

OPEN‐DOOR POLICY 

Suggestions for improving the work environment and/or operations at District are always 
welcome.  If you have a complaint, suggestion or questions about your job, your working 
conditions or the treatment you are receiving, we ask that you take your concerns first to your 
supervisor, manager, or HR.  (If your concern falls under the “Unlawful Harassment” policy, 
please use the separate complaint procedure under that policy.) 
 
This procedure, which we believe is important for both you and the District, may not result in 
every problem being resolved to your satisfaction.  However, the District values your input and 
encourages you to raise issues of concern, in good faith, without the fear of retaliation at any 
time. 
 

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

Situations of actual, perceived, or potential conflict of interest are to be avoided by any 
employees.  Any relationship with a competitor, supplier or other employee of the District which 
impairs an employee's ability to exercise good judgment on behalf of the District creates 
potential or actual conflict of interest and is not permitted.   
 



 

  12 

(a)  Employees are not permitted to have a financial or personal interest in the affairs of any 
vendor with whom the employee or subordinate employees deal on behalf of the 
District. 

(b)  No full‐time employee shall conduct business with, or be employed by, a public or private 
business which deals with the District and/or which causes the employee to be unable to 
devote adequate time and attention to District business. 

 

OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT 

No District employee shall conduct business with, or be employed by, a public or private 
business which deals with the District, or which causes the employee to be unable to devote 
adequate time and attention to District business, or which does or may create a conflict of 
interest.  If an employee wishes to engage in outside employment, the employee must inform, 
and seek authorization from, the supervisor and the General Manager in advance. 
 
Employees who wish to engage in outside employment must submit a written request to the 
General Manager explaining the details of the outside employment. 
 
Outside employment will not be permitted if it:  
 
(1)  involves the use of the District’s time, facilities, equipment and supplies; or the District’s 

logo, uniform, prestige, or influence; or  
(2)  involves outside work which may later be subject to the control, inspection, review, audit, or 

enforcement of the District;  
(3) involves time demands that would render the employee less efficient at the District; or 
(4)  involves any other reason that is, or appears to be, a conflict with the interests of the District.   
 
The General Manager will review/approve the requested outside employment. 
 
Authorization to engage in outside employment may be revoked at any time consistent with this 
policy. 
 

EMPLOYEES WHO ARE REQUIRED TO DRIVE 

Employees who are required to drive a District vehicle or their own vehicle on District business 
will be required to show proof of current, valid drivers' licenses. 
 
The District participates in a system that regularly checks the DMV records of all employees who 
drive as part of their job. 
 
Employees who drive their own vehicles on District business will be reimbursed at the approved 
IRS rate.   
 



 

  13 

If an employee is involved in an auto accident while driving their own vehicle on District 
business, the employee's personal automobile coverage would be the primary source of financial 
recovery. 
 
Gas tank on District vehicles must remain at no less than ½ tank. If you use the vehicle and the 
tank goes below half full, obtain one of the District gas cards and fill the vehicle before returning 
the keys for communal use. 
 
Whenever possible, employees are encouraged to use District vehicles while on District business. 
  
Refer to Policy 2023‐03 for full District Vehicle Use.  
 

Cellular Phone and VHF Radio USE AND SAFETY IN DISTRICT VEHICLES 

Cellular Phones 

Cellular phones must not be used while driving for work unless hands free feature and 
equipment is used. Even with the hands‐free feature in use, the following guidelines must be 
observed: 
 
Avoid using a cellular phone while the vehicle is in motion. 

 Keep calls brief. 

 Use the phone’s voice dialing feature if equipped. 

 Never allow a phone call to distract you from driving. 

 While talking, keep your head up and eyes on the road. Remember, while operating a 
vehicle, your primary task is driving. 

 Don’t take notes or try to look up phone numbers or other information while driving. If you 
must write information down, you are required to pull over to a safe spot or arrange a 
callback. 

 When driving with a passenger, have them conduct the conversation or relay information to 
you.  
 

Mobile and Handheld VHF Radios 

Unlike cellular phones, two‐way radios are generally not as distracting to use. There is no dialing, 
and you don’t have to hold anything to your ear. However, use of radios while driving is also 
considered to be a safety issue.  The following guidelines apply: 

 Keep radio traffic brief. 

 Place microphones or handheld radios in a convenient spot, where the driver does not have 
to reach for them. 

 Never allow the radio to distract you from driving. 

 While talking, keep your head up and eyes on the road. Remember, while operating a 
vehicle, your primary task is driving. 

 Don’t take notes or try to look up information while driving. If you must write information 
down, you are required to pull over to a safe spot or arrange a callback. 



 

  14 

 Operate the radios while it is safe to do so.  
 

PERSONNEL RECORDS 

You have a right to inspect certain documents in the personnel file maintained on you by the 
District as provided by law, in the presence of a District representative at a mutually convenient 
time.   
 
The District restricts disclosure of personnel files only to authorized individuals with a “need to 
know” within the District.  Any request for information from personnel files from third parties 
must be directed to the General Manager and HR. 
 

EMPLOYEE REFERENCES 

All requests for references from third parties about current or former employees must be 
directed to the General Manager or HR.  No other manager, supervisor or employee is 
authorized to release any information about current or former employees.   
 
The District discloses only the following information about current or former employees: the 
dates of employment and the title of the last position held.  If the employee authorizes in writing 
additional disclosure the District will also provide a prospective employer with the information 
on the amount of salary or wage last earned by the employee. 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES 

 

GRIEVANCE 

A Grievance is an alleged violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of an existing District 
personnel policy. 
 

GRIEVANT 

A Grievant is a current employee who believes they are adversely affected by such alleged 
violations, misinterpretation, or misapplication. 
 

GENERAL RULES 

The following rules apply: 
 
1.  Employees are not subject to retaliation for utilizing the grievance procedure. 
2.  The grievance shall be prepared on the employee's personal time and not during working 

hours. 
3.  Board Directors are not involved in the grievance process. 



 

  15 

4.  The employee’s failure to process a grievance within the time limits set forth below shall 
cause the grievance to be deemed resolved in accordance with the last answer. 

5.  Any step in the procedure or any time limit may be waived or extended by mutual consent of 
the General Manager and the Grievant.  

6.  Any grievance must be filed within ten (10) days of the alleged violation, misinterpretation, 
or misapplication, or be barred from this procedure. 

7.  Human Resources can also be contacted concerning any grievance. 
 

INFORMAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

Prior to the formal filing of a grievance, an employee shall discuss informally any potential 
grievance with the immediate supervisor who shall respond to the employee's concerns in 
writing within three (3) working days.  If, within five (5) working days after receiving the 
supervisor’s response, the grievant believes the problem has not been resolved to the 
employee's satisfaction, the employee may begin the formal grievance procedure. 
 

FORMAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

STEP 1 ‐ The Grievant shall submit to the immediate supervisor a written statement outlining the 
grievance that specifies the particular personnel policy claimed to be violated, the date of the 
violation, the names of individuals involved and any other pertinent information.  The immediate 
supervisor shall provide a written response to the Grievant within ten (10) working days of 
receipt of the grievance. 
 
STEP 2 ‐ If the Grievant is not satisfied with the response of the immediate supervisor, the 
Grievant may, within five (5) working days from the date of receipt of the written Step 1 
response, file a Step 2 written statement to the Department Manager, attaching the Step 1 
grievance and response, and explaining why the Step 1 response was unsatisfactory.  The 
Department Manager shall respond in writing to the Grievant within ten (10) working days of 
receipt of the Step 2 grievance. 
 
STEP 3 ‐ If the Grievant is not satisfied with the Step 2 response, the Grievant has five (5) working 
days after receipt to file a Step 3 grievance with the General Manager.  The Step 3 grievance 
must attach the Step 1 and 2 grievances and responses and explain why the Step 2 response is 
unsatisfactory.  Within ten (10) working days of receipt of a Step 3 grievance, the General 
Manager will provide the Grievant a written Step 3 response.  The Step 3 response is final and 
binding. 
 

TECHNOLOGY POLICY 

This policy governs the use of the District internet, computer, and technology systems, including 
electronic mail (“e‐mail”), (collectively the “District Systems”). Employees should understand 
that any document or other material or information that is stored, created, sent from, or 
received on District Systems is District property, and is subject to review and monitoring by the 
District.  Therefore, employees have no expectation of privacy in their use of District Systems. 



 

  16 

 

USES OF DISTRICT SYSTEMS THAT ARE ACCEPTABLE: 

 Communications and information exchanges directly relating to the mission, charter and 
work tasks of the District; 

 Announcements of District regulations, procedures, hearings, policies, services or activities; 

 Use for work, standards, research, analysis, and professional society or development 
activities related to the user’s District duties; and 

 Use in applying for or administering grants or contracts for District research programs.  
 

USES THAT ARE UNACCEPTABLE: 

It is unacceptable for anyone to use the District Systems to use, submit, publish, display or 
transmit any information which: 
 

 Violates or infringes on the rights of any other person, including the right to privacy; 

 Contains defamatory, false, inaccurate, abusive, obscene, pornographic, profane, offensive, 
threatening, or illegal material; 

 Violates the District’s prohibition of unlawful harassment or discrimination or violates any 
other District policy; or 

 Uses the system for any other illegal purpose. 
 

IT IS ALSO UNACCEPTABLE TO USE DISTRICT SYSTEMS TO: 

 Conduct any non‐approved business; 

 Conduct any non‐District‐related activities; 

 Engage in any activity for personal gain or personal business transactions; or 

 Make purchases on behalf of the District that are unauthorized. 
 

Electronic Mail (E‐mail) 

The District’s e‐mail system is part of the District Systems. Thus, use of District e‐mail is subject 
to this policy regarding acceptable/ unacceptable uses. Moreover, users of District Systems 
should not consider e‐mail sent from, stored, created, or received on, District Systems to be 
either private or secure.    
 
The e‐mail sent or received on the District’s Systems is for District business. Incidental and 
occasional personal use of the District’s electronic mail is permitted.  Any such messages are the 
property of the District and are subject to this policy.  The District may inspect any e‐mail on the 
District Systems for compliance with this policy.  
 
Under no circumstances may District e‐mail be used for an employee’s non‐work related 
commercial or business activities.  
 



 

  17 

Employees may not retrieve or read e‐mail that was not sent to them unless authorized by the 
District or by the e‐mail recipient.  Any questions regarding proper use of electronic mail will be 
resolved by the General Manager or HR. Employees may not divulge passwords for District 
Systems to anyone. 
 

SOCIAL NETWORKING 

Employees are permitted to use their own personal devices to engage in social media only during 
non‐working time, such as breaks and meal periods. The General Manager is the only employee 
of the District authorize to speak on behalf of the District on any media platform. 
 

COMPUTER SOFTWARE POLICY 

It is the policy of Big Bear Municipal Water District to use computer software in strict accordance 
with the license agreement, and solely for District business. 
 

CONDUCTING PERSONAL BUSINESS 

Employees are to conduct only District business while at work.  Employees may not conduct 
personal business, or business for another employer, during their scheduled working hours, 
except during breaks or meal periods. 
 

RADIO COMMUNICATIONS 

The MWD operates on an emergency radio frequency band much like the Sheriff and Fire 
Department. All radio communications must be professional. The following rules will be 
enforced: 
 Jokes, inappropriate remarks, or unnecessary comments are not permitted to be made over 

the radio; 
 If you have a radio with you “after hours” or on your days off, you will use the radio for 

emergencies only. No “personal use” is permitted; 
 If you have a long conversation, or lengthy instructions to give out, then you must use a 

“break,” so other traffic can call in; 
 Radio traffic should be kept short; dispatchers should only repeat the minimum amount of 

traffic back. (For example, if a patrol officer tells the dispatcher that they are on a tow from 
the west ramp to the east ramp, the dispatcher only needs to acknowledge, 10‐6 tow, not 
the entire conversation.); 

 Dispatchers are not to ask for an entire account of an incident over the radio. If they need 
the information immediately, the communication should be moved to a phone call; 

 Remember to stay calm, speak slowly, and distinctly; 
 When calling Waterbase during weekdays, call them first and wait for a response before 

giving information. This cuts down on unnecessary radio time if Waterbase is unable to hear 
your traffic the first time.   



 

  18 

III STANDARDS OF CONDUCT 
 

PROHIBITED CONDUCT 

The following is a summary of the type of workplace conduct that is not tolerated by Big Bear 
Municipal Water District. This list of prohibited conduct is illustrative only. 
  
 Falsifying employment records, employment information, or other District records; 
 Recording the work time of another employee or allowing any other employee to record 

your work time, or falsifying any time card; 
 Theft, unauthorized use, damage, or destruction of any District property, or the property of 

another;  
 Fighting, violence, threats, horseplay, bullying, or other unprofessional conduct, during 

working hours or on District property; 
 Carrying firearms or any other dangerous weapons on District premises at any time; 
 Using abusive language at any time on District premises; 
 Violating any District policy, including but not limited to the policy prohibiting unlawful 

workplace harassment;  
 Sleeping or loafing on the job; 
 Violating any safety, health, security or District policy, rule, or procedure; 

 

UNLAWFUL HARASSMENT 

Big Bear Municipal Water District is committed to providing a work environment free of unlawful 
harassment and discrimination. District policy prohibits sexual harassment and also unlawful 
harassment based on pregnancy, breastfeeding, childbirth or related medical conditions, 
reproductive health decision making, race, religion, creed, color, sex, gender, gender identity or 
gender expression, national origin or ancestry, citizenship, physical or mental disability, medical 
condition, marital status, registered domestic partner status, age (40 and older), sexual 
orientation, genetic information, military or veteran status, or any other basis protected by 
federal, state or local law or ordinance or regulation (collectively referred to as the “Protected 
Characteristics”). The District also prohibits unlawful harassment based on the perception that 
anyone has any of those characteristics, or is associated with a person who has or is perceived as 
having any of those characteristics.  All such harassment is not tolerated and violates the 
District’s rules of conduct.  
 
The District’s anti‐harassment policy applies to all persons involved in the operation of the 
District and prohibits unlawful harassment by any employee of the District, including supervisors 
and managers, as well as by vendors, service providers, customers, and any other persons.  
 
Prohibited harassment includes, but is not limited to, the following behavior that is based on, or 
a result of, a Protected Characteristic: 
 



 

  19 

1.  Verbal (either oral or written) conduct such as epithets, derogatory jokes or comments, slurs 
or unwanted sexual advances, invitations or comments; 

2.  Visual conduct such as derogatory and/or sexually oriented posters, photography, cartoons, 
drawings or gestures; 

3.  Physical conduct such as assault, unwanted touching, blocking normal movement or 
interfering with work; 

4.  Threats and demands to submit to sexual requests as a condition of continued employment, 
or to avoid some other loss, and offers of employment benefits in return for sexual favors; 

  and 
5.  Retaliation for having reported or threatened to report harassment or discrimination. 
  

Sexual harassment under these laws includes unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual 
favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when: 
 

  submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or 
condition of an individual's employment; 

 
  submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the 

basis for employment decisions affecting such individual; or 
 
  such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an 

individual's work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or 
offensive working environment. 

Complaint Procedure 

If you believe that you have been unlawfully harassed, or if you believe you have observed 
conduct in violation of this policy, notify your own or any other District supervisor as soon as 
possible. If possible, your complaint should include details of the incident or incidents, names of 
the individuals involved and names of any witnesses.  Supervisors will refer all harassment 
complaints to the General Manager or Designee.  The District will conduct a fair, timely, and 
thorough investigation in a confidential manner, to the extent possible.  The investigation will be 
performed by impartial and qualified personnel and will be appropriately documented.   
 

Corrective Action 

Following the investigation, the District determines that any conduct in violation of this policy  
has occurred, effective remedial action will be taken and the District will timely close the matter.  
Any employee determined by the District to have violated this policy is subject to appropriate 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination. To the extent appropriate and permitted by 
law, a District representative may advise all parties concerned of the results of the investigation.   
 



 

  20 

No Retaliation 

The District does not retaliate against employees for filing a complaint or participating in an 
investigation under this policy, and does not tolerate or permit retaliation by management, 
employees or co‐workers. 
 

Agency Complaint Procedure 

You should be aware that the Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (“EEOC”) and 
Civil Rights Department (“CRD”)address unlawful discrimination in employment.  If you think you 
have been harmed by an unlawful practice, and you are not satisfied with the District’s response 
to the problem, you may file a complaint with the appropriate agency.  The local address for the 
CRD is the Riverside office located at  1325 Spruce Street, Suite 320, Riverside CA, 92504, 
800.884.1684 or email at contact.center@calcivilrights.ca.gov.   
 

WORKPLACE ANTI‐VIOLENCE POLICY 

The District is committed to providing a safe work environment that is free of violence.  Violence 
of any type is not tolerated by the District.  Prohibited violence includes but is not limited to:  
threats, harassment, abuse, bullying, intimidation or inappropriate physical contact.  Prohibited 
physical contact may include, but is not limited to:  hitting, shoving, pushing, kicking, fighting, 
assaults, etc. 
 
Reporting any behavior that may violate this policy is mandatory.  If you witness, or believe you 
are the victim of, any conduct that you believe violates this policy, you must provide a complaint 
to your supervisor or the General Manager as soon as possible after the incident. Your complaint 
should include details of the incident or incidents, names of the individuals involved and names 
of any witnesses.  Supervisors shall refer violence complaints to the General Manager. 
 
The District will investigate the matter as appropriate, and remedial action will be taken in 
accordance with the circumstances. The District does not tolerate retaliation against employees 
for filing a complaint. 
 

OFF‐DUTY CONDUCT 

While the District does not seek to interfere with the lawful off‐duty and personal conduct of its 
employees, certain types of off‐duty conduct may interfere with the District's standing in the 
community and legitimate business interests. Accordingly, employees are expected to conduct 
their personal affairs in a manner that does not adversely affect the District.  Off‐duty conduct by 
an employee that adversely affects the District's legitimate business interests or the employee's 
ability to perform their job is not tolerated. 
 

http://email/
mailto:contact.center@calcivilrights.ca.gov


 

  21 

DRUG AND ALCOHOL ABUSE 

Big Bear Municipal Water District is concerned about the use of alcohol, drugs, or controlled 
substances as they do or may affect the workplace. Use of these substances, whether on or off 
the job, can detract from an employee’s work performance, efficiency, safety, and health. In 
addition, the use or possession of these substances on the job constitutes a potential danger to 
the welfare and safety of others and exposes the District to the risks of property loss or damage. 
  
The following rules and standards of conduct apply to all employees either on District property, 
including District parking lots and in District vehicles, or during the workday or while engaged in 
work‐related activities: 

 
(a)  Employees must  not  use  or  possess  illegal  drugs  or  alcohol while  on  duty,  and  shall  not 

manufacture, distribute, dispense,  sell, or provide  illegal drugs or controlled  substances  to 
any person, and must not be “under the influence” of any drug (legal or illegal) or alcohol. 

 
(b)  If  the use of a prescription drug may affect  the employee’s ability safely and effectively  to 

perform  their  job,  the  employee must  report  this  fact  to  the  General Manager  prior  to 
reporting to work. 

 
Reasonable  Suspicion  Testing:  Employees may  be  referred  for  drug  and  alcohol  testing  if  a 
District manager reasonably suspects the employee of being under the influence of drugs and/or 
alcohol.  
 
A  reasonable  suspicion determination  is based on  significant  and observable  changes  in,  e.g., 
employee  performance,  appearance,  behavior,  or  speech,  such  that  the  trained  manager 
reasonably suspects the employee to be under the influence. If such reasonable suspicion exists, 
the  employee will be  referred  to  a  licensed  and  certified  laboratory  for drugs  and/or  alcohol 
testing.  An agreement or other return‐to‐work agreement will be entered into individually with 
the employee at the time. 

 
Post‐Accident Testing: Testing may be required in connection with a work‐related accident when 
there  is a  reasonable  suspicion  that alcohol or drug use contributed  to  the occurrence of  the 
accident.  Where  appropriate,  post‐accident  alcohol/drug  tests  are  administered  as  soon  as 
possible following the accident. Employees  involved  in an accident where there  is a reasonable 
suspicion determination must not  consume drugs  (unprescribed)  and  alcohol until  the  test  is 
completed.  
 
Notification  of  Arrest  or  Conviction  of  Employee  Required:    Employees  must  notify  their 
supervisor of any arrest or conviction under a criminal drug statute within  five  (5) days of  the 
arrest or conviction/ 
 
Process: 
 



 

  22 

A. District will make  every  effort  to  protect  the  confidentiality  of  drug  and/or  alcohol  test 
results. 

 
B. Employees who voluntarily self‐disclose and request  leave for treatment of alcohol and/or 

drug dependency may be granted a reasonable amount of leave for this purpose.   
 
C. All test results are reviewed by an appropriate licensed medical professional using sensitive 

accurate methodology to avoid false positive results and to ensure any positive results were 
not  caused  by  legitimate  use  of  prescription  medication.  An  employee  will  have  the 
opportunity to consult with the District’s designated medical professional about a positive 
result.  An  employee  will  also  have  the  opportunity  to  supply  evidence  of  a  legitimate 
prescription. 

 

DRESS CODE 

Because each employee is a representative of the District in the eyes of the public, it is important 
that each employee report to work properly groomed and wearing appropriate and safe attire.  
Employees are expected to dress neatly, professionally, and in a manner consistent with the 
nature of the work performed. Clothing should be untorn, clean and tasteful.  Avoid clothing that 
can create a safety hazard.   
 
Supervisors may issue more specific guidelines, and uniforms will be issued, as required for 
certain positions.  Employees who report to work in attire which is unsafe or otherwise violates 
this policy may be asked to clock out and to return in acceptable attire. 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 

It is expected that you will dress in a professional manner consistent with good business 
practices.  The basic rule is:  "Nothing too casual, unprofessional, short, ragged or dirty.  If in 
doubt, don't wear it!" 
 
The following are not appropriate at work or in a work‐related situation; 

 shorts and mini‐skirts; 

 jeans and athletic clothing; 

 non‐opaque clothing, i.e. sheer clothing; 

 tank tops and the like; shirts exposing the stomach, back or shoulders; 

 clothing with messages or artwork that may violate any District policy, including but not 
limited to the policy prohibiting unlawful harassment or discrimination. 

 
Visible tattoos should be covered if reasonably feasible. 
 

Causal Day: 

On days approved by the General Manager (usually Friday) office staff may be allowed to wear 
jeans and a District provided/approved t‐shirt, polo shirt, or flannel. 



 

  23 

 

MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS EMPLOYEES 

Maintenance & Operations employees (including seasonal employees) are required to wear 
uniforms provided by the District.  These employees must take care of their uniforms and report 
any wear or damage to their supervisors. These uniforms should only be worn during working 
hours unless specific approval is received from the General Manager. The following safety 
standards also apply:  
 

Hair:  Must be neat and tied back securely if performing any task other than office work. 
Facial Hair: Beards and mustaches must be well maintained, neatly trimmed, and must 
not exceed ½" in length.  

 

Jewelry:  Shall not be excessive. Dangling jewelry is not suggested because the job requires 
  physical labor and excessive/dangling jewelry could cause harm to employee.  

 

CUSTOMER RELATIONS 

Employees are expected to be polite, courteous, prompt, and attentive to every customer.   
 
We are a service business and all employees must remember that the customer always comes 
first.   
 
Customers are to be treated courteously and given proper attention at all times.  Never regard a 
Customer’s question or concerns as an interruption or an annoyance.  Customer inquiries, 
whether in person or by telephone or email, must be addressed promptly and professionally. 
 
Never place a telephone caller on hold for an extended period.  Direct incoming calls to the 
appropriate person and make sure the call is received. 
 
Through your conduct, show your desire to assist the customer in obtaining the help they need.  
If you are unable to help a customer, find someone who can. 
 
Never argue with a customer.  If a customer‐related situation arises where the employee does 
not feel comfortable or capable of handling the problem, or if the customer remains dissatisfied 
for any reason, the employee should call a Supervisor or the General Manager for assistance 
immediately.   
 
All work‐related correspondence and documents, whether to customers or others, must be 
neatly prepared and error‐free.  Attention to accuracy and detail in all paperwork demonstrates 
your commitment to those with whom we do business. 
 



 

  24 

CONFIDENTIALITY 

Each employee is responsible for safeguarding confidential information obtained in connection 
with their District employment.  In the course of your work, you may have access to confidential 
information regarding the District, its suppliers, its customers, or perhaps even fellow 
employees.  It is your responsibility to maintain the confidentiality of any such information and 
not to reveal or disclose it, unless it is necessary for you to do so in the performance of your 
duties. 
 

BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS 

No employee may accept a gift or gratuity valued in excess of $25 from any customer, vendor, 
supplier, or other person or entity doing business with the District. Employees are not permitted 
to accept any gift or gratuity from any outside person or entity that may influence a District 
business decision, transaction, or service. 
 

CELL PHONE REIMBURSEMENT 

This District will reimburse $50 towards a personal cell phone bill of those employees who are 
required by the District to use their cell phones for District business.  Employees wishing to 
request such reimbursement must submit their request to be reviewed and approved by the 
General Manager. 
 
Once approved, an employee can request no more than one cell phone bill for reimbursement 
every 30 days. No bills greater than 30 days will be paid. 
 

EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT 

An employee may incur expenses on behalf of the District only if expressly authorized by the 
General Manager. The General Manager may delegate such responsibility to department heads 
for specific types of expenses. Employees must submit a written claim for reimbursement 
together with appropriate documentation. Employees shall be reimbursed for travel, meals, 
lodging, or miscellaneous expenses while on District business in amounts approved by the 
General Manager.  
 

AUTOMOBILE EXPENSES 

From time to time, it is advantageous to the District to require Board Members or employees to 
use their personal vehicles on District business or to provide the use of District vehicle for District 
business. The District strives to make its vehicles available to its employees for District‐related 
business. Employees who are required to use a personal vehicle for District purposes shall be 
reimbursed for such use at the maximum amount permitted under the Internal Revenue Service 
Code without creating a liability for Federal Income Tax. To be eligible for reimbursement, the 
Board Member or employee shall be authorized in advance to use his or her vehicle for District 
purposes and shall submit a written request for reimbursement.  
 



 

  25 

MEDIA CONTACTS 

Employees may be approached for interviews or comments by the news media.  Only certain 
employees designated by the General Manager are authorized to comment on the District’s 
behalf, about District policy or events that may have an impact on the District.   
 
Nothing in this policy is intended to impair an employee’s right to speak on matters of public 
concern as a private citizen.  If an employee does so, they should make it clear to the media that 
the employee is not speaking on behalf of the District. 



 

  26 

IV OPERATIONAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 

WORKPLACE SAFETY 

Those employees with the authority and responsibility for implementing the District’s Injury and 
Illness Prevention Program (“IIPP”) is the Lake Operations Supervisor.  
 
The District’s program for ensuring that employees comply with safe work practices includes 
recognition of employees who follow safe and healthful work practices, training and re‐training 
programs, corrective action as needed, or other means to ensure employee compliance with 
safe and healthful work practices. 
 
The District provides occupational safety and health information to all affected employees that 
includes meetings, training programs, postings, and written communications.  Employees are 
encouraged to report any workplace safety concerns to their Supervisor. Further, a suggestion 
box is provided in the employee breakrooms which District employees can submit notification of 
health and/or safety hazards anonymously if they prefer. 
 
Site safety inspections are performed at regularly scheduled intervals and also when: 
 

 New substances, processes, procedures, or equipment are introduced to the work place that 
do or may represent a new occupational safety and health hazard; 

 Whenever the employer is made aware of a new or previously unrecognized hazard. 
 
In the event of an occupational injury or illness, the District will conduct an investigation to 
determine the cause and prevent recurrence in the future. 
 
Whenever the District is made aware of an unsafe or unhealthy workplace condition, corrections 
will be made in a timely manner, based on the severity of the hazard.  In the event that the cited 
condition poses an imminent hazard that cannot be immediately abated without endangering 
employee(s) and/or property, all exposed personnel will be removed from the area, except those 
necessary to correct the condition.  Employees necessary to correct the hazardous condition 
shall be provided with the necessary safeguards. 
 

ERGONOMICS 

The District’s goal is to minimize workplace repetitive motion injuries. The District makes 
necessary adjustments to meet ergonomic standards through modifications to equipment and 
processes.  The District also provides employee training. The District requires all employees to 
follow safety instructions and guidelines as well as proper work procedures 
 



 

  27 

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURES 

Should a warning alarm sound or an evacuation announcement be made at the workplace or a 
work site, please take the following minimum actions: 
 
1.  Take whatever immediate steps are necessary and feasible to minimize any hazard in leaving 

the work area unattended.  Time permitting, shut off heaters, radios, coffee warmers, etc. 
2.  Take your personal items with you, e.g., purses and briefcases, time permitting. 
3.  Do not re‐enter the building until advised to do so. 
4.  In the event of an earthquake, you are to get under your desk or the nearest table (staying 

away from windows if possible) until further notice. 
5.  In the event of an emergency taking place in the front desk area, evacuate through the back 

exit, proceeding out through the exit inside of the Lake Operations Supervisor’s office. 
6.  In the event of a small fire, a conservative approach should be taken when deciding to use a 

fire extinguisher or calling 9‐1‐1. 
 
 



 

  28 

V EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 

HOLIDAYS 

 
The District observes the following paid holidays (paid holiday is defined as 8 straight hours): 
 

Day Holiday Observed On 
(Main Office Closed) 

Holiday Observed 

January 1st   New Year’s Day 

3rd Monday in January  Martin Luther King Day 

3rd Monday in February  President’s Day 

Last Monday in May  Memorial Day 

June 19th   National Independence Day 

July 4th  Independence Day 

1st Monday in September   Labor Day 

November 11th   Veteran’s Day 

Fourth Thursday in November  Thanksgiving Day 

Friday after Thanksgiving  Thanksgiving Friday 

December 25th   Christmas Day 

December 26th  Day After Christmas 

 
Those eligible to receive holiday compensation are full‐time employees who are regularly 
scheduled to work 40 hours per week. Seasonal employees who work at least 72‐hours before 
the holiday are eligible for holiday pay. If a seasonal employee takes sick or any days off during 
the pay period with a holiday, they are no longer entitled to holiday pay. 
 
When a paid holiday falls on Sunday, the following Monday shall be deemed the paid holiday; 
when a paid holiday falls on a Saturday, the previous Friday shall be deemed the paid holiday.  
 
Any full‐time employee who is on vacation or paid sick time when a District‐paid holiday occurs 
will not be charged for a vacation/ paid sick day for that day, but instead will be paid for the 
holiday.  Employees on unpaid status at the time of the District holiday do not receive pay for the 
holiday.   
 
 



 

  29 

VACATIONS / PAID TIME OFF (PTO) 

Full Time Employees 

 
Full‐time employees shall be eligible to accrue up to the amount of vacation shown below based 
upon the number of years of continuous service: 
 
   
        
 
 
Vacation Cap: Accrued vacation time for Employees is limited to three hundred twenty (320) 
hours. Once an Employee accrues three hundred twenty (320) hours of vacation, no further 
accrual will be posted until the Employee uses the vacation time.  
 
Accrued vacation benefits shall be paid to the employee upon termination of employment. 
 
Employees wishing to request vacation must provide a request to their supervisor through the 
current HRMS as far in advance as possible. Vacations shall be scheduled to provide adequate 
coverage of job responsibilities and staffing requirements.  Supervisors make the final 
determinations about whether or not to approve vacation request. 
 
Employees on unpaid leave for any reason do not accrue vacation time.  If a holiday occurs 
during your vacation period, eligible employees will be paid the holiday day, and will not be 
charged for the vacation day.  
 

SEASONAL EMPLOYEES 

a)      Seasonal employees shall accrue at the same rate as fulltime employee sick leave during a 
season. When PTO is paid, the amount shall be deducted from PTO entitlement. Seasonal 
employees requesting any time off from their regular scheduled shifts are required to use PTO. If 
the seasonal employee is still entitled to leave, but has exhausted all accrued PTO, the employee 
shall be placed on unpaid status.  
b)  Employees can use PTO beginning on the 30th day of employment.   
 

EMPLOYEE PAID SICK TIME 

Employees may request to use paid sick time only when actually required for the diagnosis, care, 
or treatment of a health condition, or for preventive care, for the employee or the employee’s 
designated person. In addition, if an employee becomes a victim of a violent crime, including 
domestic violence, stalking, or sexual assault, the employee may use sick leave for after‐care, 
and otherwise as permitted by law.  Paid sick time may not be used for any other purpose. 
 

  Years of Service        Accrual Rate 
  1 through 5     .0385 hrs. per hr. worked 
  6 through 10  .0577 hrs. per hr. worked 
  11 or more    .0770 hrs. per hr. worked



 

  30 

Beginning on their date of hire, each employee shall accumulate .0462 hours of paid sick time for 
each hour worked. This typically equates to accrual of one day of paid sick time for each calendar 
month of District service. Employees can use sick time beginning on the 90th day of 
employment.   
 
Employees will not be provided paid sick time in advance of it being accrued.   
 
Employees who have exhausted paid sick time and who remain unable to work due to illness or 
injury will typically be provided unpaid medical leave and will be required to exhaust all other 
applicable accrued paid time off. 
 
Employees on unpaid status for any reason do not continue to accrue paid sick time. 
 
For purposes of this policy, “designated person” is defined as the employee’s: child, parent, 
grandparent, grandchild, spouse, domestic partner, or sibling. 
 

PAID SICK TIME BUYOUT 

The District will offer a buyout option of accrued paid sick time for Employees under the 
following conditions only: 
1. The Employee has accrued at least 100 hours of paid sick time. 
2. The Employee can only choose to exercise a sick time buyout on either their work 
anniversary or during a lifechanging event which is approved by the General Manager. 
3. The Employee cannot have fewer than 100 hours in their accrual account after the 
buyout is complete. 
 

PAID SICK TIME DONATIONS 

If an employee would like to donate their accrued paid sick time, both the requesting and 
donating employee must be employed with the District. The request must be related to, e.g., a 
medical emergency or major disaster. The eligibility of the request shall be determined by the 
General Manager. The donation of accrued paid time is strictly voluntary. If the recipient 
employee has available accrued time off, this time will be used. prior to use of any donated time. 
Donated time may only be used for time off related to the approved request. The donating 
employee shall not donate more than fifty (5O) percent of their paid sick time accrual and 
cannot exceed an 80‐hour donation. An employee may ask for only one paid time off donation 
during their tenure of employment. Paid accrued time donated is calculated based on the value 
of the donor's accrual, not the receiving employee's accrual value. 
 

ADDITIONAL OPTIONAL/UNPAID LEAVE 

The District may grant unpaid and paid leaves of absence to employees in certain circumstances.  
It is important to request any leave in writing as far in advance as possible, to keep in touch with 
your supervisor during your leave, and to give prompt notice if you become aware of any change 
in your return date.  If your approved leave expires and you have not contacted your supervisor 



 

  31 

or the District, or returned to work, the District may assume that you do not plan to return to 
work. Paid time off does not accrue during any leave of absence that is unpaid by the District.  
 
The District grants leaves of absence in accordance with applicable law and District policy.  A 
summary discussion of certain types of leaves granted by the District is included below. Upon 
submission of a medical certification that an employee is able to return to work from a workers' 
compensation leave, the employee will generally be reinstated to their same position held at the 
time the leave began or to an equivalent position, if available, to the extent required by law.   
 
Jury Service 
  Regular full‐time employees required to serve jury duty are provided their normal 

compensation for up to ten days (2‐weeks).  Employees who are required to serve jury duty 
in excess of thirty days, or who are not eligible for paid jury duty time, are provided an 
unpaid leave of absence to serve on a jury.  Employees on unpaid jury service leave may 
request to use their applicable accrued paid time off. You should notify your supervisor of 
the need for time off for jury duty as soon as a notice or summons from the court is received.  
You may be requested to provide written verification from the court clerk of having served.  
If work time remains after any day of jury service, you are expected to return to work for the 
remainder of your work schedule.   

 
Bereavement  
  Employees may request up to a maximum of five (5) workdays off with pay  following the 

death of a family member for the purpose of attending the funeral and/or making necessary 
arrangements.  For purposes of this policy, members of the immediate family are:  spouse, 
children, step‐children, parents, step‐parents, grandparents, grandchildren, father‐in‐law, 
mother‐in‐law, domestic partner, and siblings.   All bereavement requests are considered for 
approval by General Manager. 

 
Personal Leave 
A personal leave of absence for up to three (3) months without pay may be granted to an 
employee who has a minimum of one year of service with the District.  Requests for personal 
leave should be limited to unusual circumstances requiring an absence of a minimum of two 
weeks. The employee will be required to exhaust all applicable accrued paid time off in connection 
with any approved personal leave. For example, if an employee wishes to travel to Europe during 
the personal leave, they would not be eligible to use accrued paid sick time. 
 

EMPLOYEE INSURANCE BENEFITS 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL INSURANCE 

The District provides, at District expense, a comprehensive medical insurance plan and dental 
plan for eligible full‐time employees and their eligible dependents. A full‐time employee is 
typically eligible for these benefits upon completion of the applicable waiting period established 
by the insurance plan. 
 



 

  32 

SOCIAL SECURITY 

Social Security is an important part of every employee's retirement benefit.  The District pays a 
matching contribution to each employee's Social Security benefits.  
 

WORKERS' COMPENSATION 

The District, in accordance with state law, provides insurance coverage for employees in case of 
work‐related injury.  The workers' compensation benefits provided to injured employees may 
include:  medical care; cash benefits, tax free, to replace lost wages; assistance to help qualified 
injured employees return to suitable employment. 
 
To ensure that you receive any workers' compensation benefits to which you may be entitled, 
you will need to:  immediately report any work‐related injury to your supervisor; seek medical 
treatment and follow‐up care if required; and complete a written Employee's Claim Form (DWC 
Form 1) and return it to District. The DWC Form 1 is available from HR. 
 
The District will continue to provide health insurance coverage to full‐time employees as 
required by law.  
 
Employees who are injured in a work‐related incident will be referred, at least initially, to the 
District’s designated physician for medical treatment, unless prior to a work‐related injury, the 
District has received from the employee a written notice that the employee wishes to be treated 
by their own physician.   
 
Employees who are ill or injured as a result of a work‐related incident, and who are also eligible 
for medical leave under the California Family Rights Act (CFRA), will be placed on CFRA during 
the time they are medically precluded from returning to work. These leaves run concurrently. 
 

PREGNANCY‐RELATED DISABILITY LEAVE 

Employees are granted unpaid pregnancy disability leave (“PDL”) for up to four months when 
they are certified by their health care provider as being temporarily unable to work due to 
pregnancy‐related disability. 
 
 Employees requesting PDL must inform HR when the leave is expected to begin and how long 

it will likely last. If the need for a leave is foreseeable, employees must provide at least 30 
days’ advance notice; 

 If 30 days’ advance notice is not possible, notice must be given as soon as practical; 
 Upon the request of an employee and recommendation of the employee’s health care 

provider, the employee’s work assignment may be changed if necessary to protect the health 
and safety of the employee and/or the child; 

 Requests for temporary transfers are reasonably accommodated; 
 Requests for PDL, like requests for any medical leave, must be supported by a certification 

from a health care provider confirming the need for leave. The certification should include: 



 

  33 

 The date on which the employee became disabled due to pregnancy, childbirth or related 
condition; and 

 The probable duration of the period of disability. 
 Employees returning from PDL must provide a release to return, with or without work 

restrictions, from their health care provider. 
 Employees taking PDL are required to use any accrued paid sick time. An employee may elect 

to use any other applicable accrued time off during the otherwise unpaid leave. 
 
Leave does not need to be taken in one continuous period of time and may be taken 
intermittently, as needed.  
 
Employees returning from PDL are reinstated to their same position, or to an equivalent position, 
to the extent required by law.  
 
The District continues the group health insurance coverage for employees on PDL on the same 
terms as if the employee had continued to work.    
 

FAMILY/MEDICAL LEAVE (California Family Rights Act) 

The District provides eligible employees with up to 12 workweeks of unpaid family and medical 
leave in a 12‐month period in accordance with state law entitled “California Family Rights Act” or 
“CFRA.”  To be eligible for CFRA leave: 
 
 The employee must have provided at least 12 months of service to the District in the 

preceding year; and 
 The employee must have worked at least 1,250 hours during the previous 12‐month period 

before the need for leave  
 
CFRA leave may be taken for one or more of the following reasons: 
 
 The birth of the employee’s child, or placement of a child with the Employee for adoption or 

foster care; 
 To care for the employee’s designated person (defined as any individual related by blood or 

whose association with the employee is equivalent to a family relationship.) 
 For a serious health condition that makes the employee temporarily unable to perform the 

job; or 
 For a “qualifying exigency” arising out of the fact that the employee’s spouse, domestic 

partner, child, or parent is on, or has been notified of an impending call to, “covered active 
duty.” 

 
For purposes of calculating the 12‐month period during which 12 weeks of leave may be taken, 
Big Bear Municipal Water District measures rolling 12‐month period measuring backwards from 
the date the employee uses any CFRA leave. 
 



 

  34 

Any leave taken for the birth, adoption, or foster care placement of a child does not have to be 
taken in one continuous period of time. CFRA leave taken for the birth or placement of a child 
will be granted in minimum amounts of two weeks. However, the District will grant a request for 
a CFRA leave (for birth/placement of a child) of less than two weeks’ duration on any two 
occasions. Any baby‐bonding leave taken must be concluded within one year of the birth or 
placement of the child with the employee. 
 
The following procedures apply when an employee requests CFRA leave: 
 
Please contact the General Manager or HR, as soon as you realize the need for family/medical 
leave. 
 
If the leave request is due to the expected birth of a child, or the placement of a child for 
adoption or foster care, or for planned medical treatment of a serious health condition of the 
employee or a family member, the employee must notify the District at least 30 days before 
leave is to begin.  
 
For employees requesting leave for their own serious health condition, or to care for a family 
member with a serious health condition, the District requires the employee to provide medical 
certification supporting the need for leave within 15 days of the request, unless it is not 
practicable to do so. The District may require recertification from the health care provider if 
additional leave is required. 
 
If the leave is needed for to care for a family member with a serious health condition, the 
employee must provide a certification from the health care provider stating: 
 
 Date of commencement of the serious health condition; 
 Probable duration of the condition; 
 Estimated amount of time for care by the health care provider; and  
 12‐week leave for baby‐bonding 
 Confirmation that the serious health condition warrants the participation of the employee. 
 
If an employee requests leave for their own serious health condition, the employee must provide 
a certification from the health care provider stating: 
 
 Date of commencement of the serious health condition; 
 Probable duration of the condition; and 
 Inability of the employee to work at all or perform any one or more of the essential functions 

of the position because of the serious health condition. 
 
Employees returning from CFRA leave for their own serious health condition must provide a 
release to return to work, with or without medical restrictions, from their health care provider. 
 
The District will continue to provide health insurance coverage to any employee taking approved 
CFRA at the level and under the conditions of coverage as if the employee had continued in 



 

  35 

employment for the duration of such leave.  The District will continue to make the same 
premium contribution as if the employee had continued working. 
 

Intermittent Leave 

Employees may take CFRA leave intermittently (in blocks of time, or by reducing their normal 
weekly or daily work schedule) if the leave is for the serious health condition of the employee or 
their immediate family member and the intermittent leave schedule is medically necessary as 
determined by the health care provider.  
 

VICTIMS OF CRIME LEAVE 

An employee who is themselves a victim, or who is the family member of a victim, of a violent or 
serious felony may take unpaid time off from work to attend judicial proceedings related to the 
crime. 
 
For purposes of this policy, an immediate family member is defined as: a spouse or registered 
domestic partner, child, stepchild, sibling or step‐sibling, parent or step‐parent 
 
Before your absence can be approved, you must provide the District with documentation of the 
scheduled proceeding.  Such notice is typically given by a court or government agency setting the 
hearing, a district attorney or prosecuting attorney's office or a victim/witness office. 
 
In cases of domestic violence or sexual assault, unpaid time off work will be provided an 
employee requesting this time off to help ensure the health and safety of the employee or their 
child, including for reasons such as: counseling, seeking a restraining order, testimony and/or 
relocation.  Appropriate documentation must be produced.    
 
If advance notice is not possible, you must provide appropriate documentation within a 
reasonable time after the absence.   
 
Any absence from work under this policy is unpaid, unless the employee chooses to take accrued 
paid time off, such as accrued vacation time.   
 

 TIME OFF FOR VOTING 

In the event that an employee does not have sufficient time outside of working hours to vote in a 
statewide election, the employee may take off enough working time to enable them to vote.  
Such time off shall be taken at the beginning or the end of the regular working shift, whichever 
allows for more free time, and the time taken off shall be combined with the voting time 
available outside of working hours.  Under these circumstances an employee will be allowed a 
maximum of two hours on the election day without loss of pay.  Where possible, the employee 
shall give their supervisor at least two days’ notice of the request for time off to vote. 
 



 

  36 

VOLUNTEER CIVIL SERVICE PERSONNEL 

No employee shall be disciplined for taking time off to perform emergency duty as a volunteer 
firefighter, peace officer, or emergency rescue personnel.  
 

SCHOOL ACTIVITIES 

SCHOOL CONFERENCES INVOLVING SUSPENSION 

If it becomes necessary for an employee who is the parent or guardian of a child to attend the 
child's school to discuss possible suspension, the employee should alert their supervisor as soon 
as possible so that alternative work arrangements may be made.  The District does not 
discriminate against any employee for taking time off for this purpose.  
 
 

SCHOOL ACTIVITIES 

Employees are permitted to participate in the school activities of their child(ren).  This unpaid 
absence is subject to the following provisions: 
 
1.  Parents, Guardians or Grandparents having custody of one or more children in kindergarten 

or grades 1 to 12 may take time off for a school activity. 
 
2.  The time off for school activity participation cannot exceed eight hours in any calendar 

month, or no more than a total of 40 hours each school year. 
 
3.  Employees must provide as much advance notice as possible to their supervisor. 
 
4.  If both parents are employed by the District, the first employee to request such leave will 

receive the time off; the other parent will receive the time off only if the leave is approved by 
the supervisor. 

 
5.  Employees must use applicable accrued time off to receive compensation for this time off. 

Accrued paid sick time is not available for this purpose. 
 
6.  Employees who do not have paid time off available may take the time off without pay. 
 
7.  Employees must provide their supervisor with documentation from the school indicating that 

the employee participated in a school activity on the day of the absence. 
 

EXTERNAL EMPLOYEE EDUCATION/TRAINING AND REIMBURSEMENT 

It may be necessary for employees to attend training programs, seminars, conferences, lectures, 
meetings, or other outside activities for the benefit of the District or the individual employees. 
 



 

  37 

Attendance at such activities may be required by the District or requested by individual 
employees.  However, attendance will generally not be considered an officially authorized 
activity, subject to the following policy on reimbursement and compensation, unless prior 
written approval has been issued by the supervisor or General Manager.  To obtain approval, 
employees wishing to attend an activity must present a written request detailing all relevant 
information, including date, hours, location, cost, expenses, and nature, purpose, and 
justification for attendance. 
 
Reimbursement for Business‐Related Expenses 
 
Where attendance is required or authorized by the District, a per diem check will be issued to 
the employee attending based on the federal GSA travel rates.  
 
Mileage shall be reimbursed at the rate per mile established by the IRS.   
 
Customary and reasonable expenses generally may include registration fees, materials, meals, 
transportation, and parking.  To qualify for reimbursement, the employee must submit an 
expense form issued from the Accountant I for General Manager approval if not approved before 
travel. 
 

Compensation for Training Time 

The District compensates employees for their time in attendance at meetings, lectures, and 
training programs unless all of the following are true: 
 
a) the employee's attendance is voluntary;  
b) the activity is outside of normal working hours;  
c) the employee performs no productive work at the activity; and  
d) the activity is not directly related to the employee’s job. 
 

RECREATIONAL ACTIVITIES AND PROGRAMS 

The District is not liable for the payment of workers' compensation benefits for any injury that 
arises out of an employee's voluntary participation in any off‐duty recreational, social, or athletic 
activity that is not part of the employee's work‐related duties. 
 

SECURITY 

Employees are expected to assist in maintaining a secure workplace.   
 
For example, be aware of persons loitering for no apparent reason (e.g., in parking areas, 
walkways, entrances/exits, and service areas).  Report any suspicious persons or activities to a 
supervisor.  Secure your desk and/or work area at the end of the day or when called away from 
your work area for an extended length of time and do not leave valuable and/or personal articles 
in or around your workstation.   



 

  38 

 
If you are the last employee to leave a District facility, be certain to follow proper closing 
procedures and if applicable, set the alarm.  Do not share your alarm code or safe combination 
with another person under any circumstances.  If you feel a code or combination has been 
compromised, notify your supervisor immediately. 
 

EMPLOYER PROPERTY 

District property, including but not limited to lockers, desks, filing cabinets, files, and vehicles, as 
well as District computer, technology, and internet systems (hereafter the District “Technology 
Systems”), must be maintained according to District rules and regulations as seen in this 
handbook.  Property must be kept clean and be used only for work‐related purposes.   
 
The District reserves the right to inspect any and all District property, as well as all property 
brought onto District facilities (including parking lots).  The District further reserves the right to 
monitor and inspect all Technology Systems, including but not limited to District email accounts, 
and electronic media storage devices and systems.  That means that employees have no 
expectation of privacy in any document, communication, or other item they create, receive, 
send, or store on the Technology Systems. 
 
These searches and inspections may be carried out with or without notice to the employee 
and/or in the employee's presence or absence. 
 
Employees are not permitted to remove any District property from District premises without 
prior authorization from the General Manager. 
 
For security reasons, employees should not leave personal belongings of value in the workplace.  
 

SOLICITATION AND DISTRIBUTION OF LITERATURE 

To ensure efficient operation of the District's business and to prevent annoyance to employees, 
it is necessary to exert reasonable control of solicitations and distribution of literature on District 
property and/or during working time.  Working time means the working time of both the 
employee doing the soliciting and distributing as well as the working time of the employee to 
whom the solicitation/distribution is being directed. 
 
The following rules apply, subject to applicable law: 
 
1) Persons who are not employed by the District may not solicit or distribute literature on District 
    property at any time for any purpose. 
2) Employees are prohibited from soliciting or distributing literature during working time.   
3) Employees are prohibited from distributing literature at any time for any purpose on District 
    premises. 
 



 

  39 

No employee shall promote any cause or organization during the Employee’s working hours.  No 
employee who is not authorized to do so shall represent that the District represents any cause or 
organization. 
 

CHILDREN AT WORK 

For the safety and security of employees and children, children are not permitted in the 
workplace.  In the event of an "emergency situation" where you believe it is necessary to bring 
your child to the workplace, you must seek and obtain prior approval from the General Manager 
before bringing the child on‐site. 
 



BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 
MEETING DATE:   December 21, 2023                             AGENDA ITEM: 6C 
SUBJECT: 
THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE (DIRECTORS LUDECKE & BREWSTER) RECOMMENDS THE 
PROPOSAL FROM ROGUE JET BOATWORKS NOT TO EXCEED $159,480 FOR A NEW PATROL 
BOAT FOR FULL BOARD APPROVAL. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
The Administrative Committee recommends full Board approval for the new patrol boat quote, 
no to exceed $159,480. 
 
DISCUSSION/FINDINGS:  
During the FY2023-24 discussion, two patrol boat purchases were approved. This quote is for the 
same boat as our newest patrol boat that was granted to the District by the Department of 
Boating and Waterways. The new patrol boat has worked out great, and the enhanced lockable 
sliding door has been a huge upgrade so we are requesting the exact same build for this second 
boat. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:   None 
 
FINANCING: None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     Submitted by:  Brittany Lamson, Interim General Manager 
  



Big Bear Municipal Water District "2024"

2845 Merry Lane

White City, Oregon
97503

Diagrams Specifications
Mike Stephenson Model Coastal 24' "2024"
909-866-5796 Length 24 feet
mstephenson@bbmwd.net Beam 102"
442-414-5796 cell Side Height 36 inches

Bottom Width 78"
Deadrise 18 degree transom/Bow 50 degrees 
Fuel Capacity 80 Gallon
Standard Power Mercruiser 8.2 MAG HO

Bravo 3 X sterndrive 2.00:1 drive
6 lifting/turning strakes progressive dead rise

5086 Marine aluminum alloy Bottom and Sides Side Thickness 0.125
Bottom Thickness 0.250
Transom Thickness 0.250
Box Girder Thickness 0.160

Boat Color No Exterior paint Optional Features (and Deducts)
Powder coat Dark Grey Factory Direct Pricing 157,240$        
canvas Additions to Base Price "Coastal" 24' "2024" incl.
upholstery color Smoke with black welt 8' Full hardtop with sliding side windows(Lightly Tinted), roof railing, incl.
carpet color rear facing flood light, inside 2 dome lights over helm seats, incl.
Graphics welded grab handles, bow door extending up into roof,  interior roof incl.

carpeting, roof mounted anchor light, AK Bulkhead side panels w/ incl.
Standard Features windows to transom height Incl.

Guardian Aluminum Tandem axle trailer- disc brakes Non skid coating at all decks, gunnel, and platforms incl.
both axles, UHMW bunks and side guides Port and starboard under helm storage compartments incl.
LED lights, vault oil bath hubs Beaching plate drop/slant cover w/windows incl.
15" tires and wheels with galvanized rims 2 welded diamond plate steps aft of hardtop on interior side tray incl.
Spare tire, wheel and mount to trailer 6 - 10" welded cleats 1 - 8" bow cleat incl.
upgrade to 225X15 10 ply radial tires Port and starboard windshield wipers and center windshield incl.

Alaskan bulkhead with sliding locking door incl.
Aluminum floor with powder coat non skit incl.

Bilge blower Radar arch on roof for lights and antennas incl.
2 - 1,100 bilge pumps with both having auto switches Welded tow bit at transom incl.

Heater/defroster unit-2 window 2 foot exits incl.
Suspension seats port and starboard wash down pump system incl.

2 each side 3" "D" rubber bumpers at Gunnel and 1/2 to water line incl.
Navigation Lights-LED Removable door below walk thru windshield incl.
Dual marine batteries + Switch 3 lifting strakes per side incl.

engine cover to open forward w/two handles incl.
Full width swim platform with grab handle at transom and tie down incl.

Welded railing bow and stern hooks on swim board w/non skid incl.
12 volt Power Point welded fold up boarding ladder on starboard side incl.
Locking glove box with grab handle 2 - 24"X18"X20" storage box seats with lids and latches incl.

Bennett elec. trim tabs with indicators incl.
12volt power plug at port transom, 2 at dash incl.

incl.
Boat Serial # RQJT
Engine Serial # 
Trailer serial #

Diamond Plate (step deck, trim, fore deck) Bravo stern drive serial #
Bow storage compartment 10" Garmin multi function display for above engine incl.
Zinc anode on transom includes GPS, Map and all engine functions incl.

Spare prop stainless steel incl.
225X15 10 ply radial tires incl.

Two welded cup holders "V" block for trailer incl.
Anchor locker in bow step deck (23"X26") Diamond plate on bow sides incl.
Transducer bracket Bow docking lights incl.
6 heavy duty lifting/turning strakes 4 flood lights separate switches for port and starboard at cab incl.
10 year commercial warranty Minimum- 3 open curcuits for future accessories at helm incl.
Powder coat all diamond plate

Delivery to Big Bear 2,600$            

Total 159,840$        
Deposit
Due on Delivery

Rogue Jet Signature Customer Signature

air air

18
x3

6 
se

at

18
x3

6 
se

at

12/19/2023  4:17 PM 1221-6C-New Patrol Boat 2024.xls

mailto:mstephenson@bbmwd.net


BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 
MEETING DATE:   December 21, 2023                             AGENDA ITEM: 6D 
SUBJECT: 
THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE (DIRECTORS LUDECKE & BREWSTER) RECOMMENDS THE 
PROPOSAL FROM ROGUE JET BOATWORKS NOT TO EXCEED $200,000 FOR A NEW WORK BOAT 
FOR FULL BOARD APPROVAL. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
The Administrative Committee recommends full Board approval for the new work boat quote, 
not to exceed $200,000. 
 
DISCUSSION/FINDINGS:  
During the FY2023-24 discussion, replacing our current work boat which is very old and growing 
more unstable was approved. The new work boat would be slightly shorter but have a ramp for 
easy accessibility and be significantly more stable than our current pontoon boat build. The quote 
for this custom boat was reviewed, but the committee wanted to add pricing for a winch to assist 
with pulling items straight onto the vessel from the shoreline. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:   None 
 
FINANCING: Capital Improvement Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     Submitted by:  Brittany Lamson, Interim General Manager 
  



Customer Big Bear Municipal Water 2024 28XXL LC

Address 2845 Merry Lane

Phone White City, Oregon
email 97503

Diagrams Specifications
Mike Stephenson Model      OB28 Landing Craft Coastal 28' XXL"2024"
909-866-5796 Length 28 feet
442-414-0150 cell Beam 102"
mstephenson@bbmwd.net Side Height 40 inches

Bottom Width 96"
Deadrise 18 degree transom/Bow 50 degrees 
Fuel Capacity 100 gallon

7,000' Elevation Standard Power 2/250 Mercury outboards
Hull bottom design Progressive dead rise 
4 lifting/turning strakes reverse chine

5086 Marine aluminum alloy bottom and sides Side Thickness 0.160
Bottom Thickness 0.250
Transom Thickness 0.250
Box Girder Thickness 0.160

Boat Color No Optional Features (and Deducts)
Powder coat color Factory direct pricing "2024" 159,800.00$   

Additions to Base Price Extended outboard bracket incl.
upholstery color 28' Drop bow 64" wide drop bow door incl.

Xwide Center console with welded "T" top attached to center console incl.
Graphics Electric winch for drop bow with controls dash incl.

2/250 Mercury Verado 4stroke outboard engines incl.
Standard Features Binnacle controls, digital gauges, stainless steel props incl.

"Guardian" all welded aluminum tandem axle trailer Hydraulic steering system tie rod between engines incl.
4 wheel disc surge brakes Flat deck as far forward as possible towards drop bow door incl.
16" radial tires with galvanized rims Aluminum self-bailing deck with side and transom scuppers 6,200.00$       
8,700 lb. each HD axles torflex Non skid on deck 2,400.00$       
aluminum bunks with UHMW Bennett electric trim tabs with controls at dash 1,690.00$       
LED lights Panoramic windshield wiper Slant forward windshield 400.00$          

Port transom walk thru door 900.00$          
Extended outboard bracket-full width 4 welded 10" cleats each side (8 total) incl.

Fully welded aluminum rub rail on sides approx. 50' total 1,800.00$       
 Storage box seat forward of C.C. with cushion 800.00$          

Full width helm seat storage box w/cushion - forward/aft cushion backre incl.
Stainless steel steering wheel Foot rest  incl.
Navigation Lights H.D. Davit with electric winch 2,200.00$       
Dual Heavy Duty Marine  Batteries + Switch
2 Bilge Pumps and auto switches  (1,100 gph)

12 volt Power Point

 
 
 Boat Serial # RQJT

Engine Serial # 
 Engine Serial # 

Trailer Serial #
 
 Electric over hydraulic brake system 2,250.00$       
 Spare tire, wheel, and mount to trailer 550.00$          
 "V" block for trailer 450.00$          

Transducer bracket
4 heavy duty lifting/turning strakes and reverse chine
 10 yr.  Commercial Warranty on hull

 
Zinc anode at transom

Delivery to Big Bear w/training 3,200.00$       

 
 Total 182,640.00$   

Deposit
Due on Delivery 182,640.00$   
PLUS ADD ON WINCH

Rogue Jet Signature Customer Signature

12/19/2023  4:17 PM 1221-6D-New Work Boat 2024 28XXL LC.xls

mailto:mstephenson@bbmwd.net


BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MEETING DATE:   December 21, 2023 AGENDA ITEM: 6E 
SUBJECT: 
THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE (DIRECTORS LUDECKE & BREWSTER) RECOMMENDS THE 
BIG BEAR FIRE DOCK PLAN AND AGREEMENT FOR FULL BOARD DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE 
APPROVAL. 

RECOMMENDATION:  
The Administrative Committee recommends full Board approval for the new fire dock build and 
revised agreement. 

DISCUSSION/FINDINGS: 
The previous dock build was rejected by the full board, and they directed staff to meet with the 
fire department and the dock builder at the proposed site to inform the builder what needed to 
be considered and changed before they would consider approval again. On November 7th District 
staff met with the fire department representatives and the builder to show them what the Board 
and District would consider an acceptable dock which included no permanent structure and 
removable spuds for easy movability of the dock. The current build has the permanent structure 
removed and includes spuds, but still includes weights with chains which will be near impossible 
to move, but the builder has assured the District he has a rig that can pull them easily. 

Our Counsel reviewed the previous agreement submitted to the District and has made a few 
changes which will need to be accepted by the fire department/County in order for the District 
to move ahead with the approve. If these changes are not accepted by Fire/County, the dock 
would not be allowed. 

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:   None 

FINANCING: None 

     Submitted by: Brittany Lamson, Interim General Manager



aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky
3’min
6’max

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky
Floated Walkway

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky
Concrete Toe/Heel
w/ 1/2” Rebar

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky
1’min
3’max

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky
Dock Plans for:
 

aaron Osekowsky
10/4/23

aaron Osekowsky
Footing / Connection Details:

aaron Osekowsky
Anchor / Chain Details:

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky
Submerged anchors example:
-Approx. 2500lb-3500lb each

aaron Osekowsky

-3/8” hot dipped galvanized chains
-Connected with 1/2” hardware

aaron Osekowsky
Sway / Anchor Chains:

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky
Builder: Arrowhead Docks Unlimited
P.O. Box 133
Cedar Glen CA, 92321
(915)316-7476

aaron Osekowsky
License # A 1093838 

aaron Osekowsky
San Bernardino County 
Fire Protection 
Station 96

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky
Waterline

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky
Ramp will rest on shoreline and can be move out to during extreme low water levels .

aaron Osekowsky
Floated Walkway

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky
*Not to Scale*

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky
4” Galvanized pylons
-Can be lifted and lowered accordingly with water level

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky



aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky
Arrowhead Docks Unlimited
A 1093838

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky
\

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky
30’

aaron Osekowsky
24’

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky
Anchor

aaron Osekowsky
Chain

aaron Osekowsky
Chain

aaron Osekowsky
Anchor

aaron Osekowsky
Floated  Walkway

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky
Chain

aaron Osekowsky
Chain

aaron Osekowsky
 


aaron Osekowsky
San Bernardino County 
Fire Protection 
Station 96

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky
40’

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky
40’

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky
Floated walkway

aaron Osekowsky
Concrete Pier

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky

aaron Osekowsky



BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MEETING DATE:   December 21, 2023  AGENDA ITEM: 6F 
SUBJECT: 
THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE (DIRECTORS LUDECKE & BREWSTER) RECOMMENDS 
REJECTION OF THE CARPI USA GEOMEMBRANE LINING BID FOR THE DAM RESURFACING 
PROJECT. 
RECOMMENDATION:  
The Administrative Committee recommends rejection of the only bid received for the CARPI 
Geomembrane Lining. 

DISCUSSION/FINDINGS: 
After a couple presentations regarding the CARPI geomembrane lining, the proposals 
submitted were significantly more than what the Board was told. The Committee did not 
feel like any of the three options submitted at varying lake levels were realistic for the 
District and therefore are recommending rejection of the solo bid.  

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:   None 

FINANCING: None 

Submitted by:  Brittany Lamson, Interim General Manager 











BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 
MEETING DATE:   December 21, 2023                             AGENDA ITEM: 6G 
SUBJECT: 
ANNOUNCE STEVE LUDECKE, DIVISION 1, AS PRESIDENT. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Tom Bradford, current President, will announce the President for 2024. 
 
DISCUSSION/FINDINGS:  
The Big Bear Municipal Water District rotates positions on an annual basis by Division. The new 
President, Steve Ludecke, will announce Vice President. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:   None 
 
FINANCING: None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     Submitted by:  Brittany Lamson, Interim General Manager 
  



BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 
MEETING DATE:   December 21, 2023                               AGENDA ITEM: 6H 
SUBJECT: 
COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Steve Ludecke, President, will announce the committee assignments for calendar year 2024. 
 
DISCUSSION/FINDINGS:  
It has been suggested that all committee assignments remain the same as the 2023 calendar 
year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:   None 
FINANCING: None 
 
 
 
 
 
     Submitted by:  Brittany Lamson, Interim General Manager 



BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 
MEETING DATE:   December 21, 2023                               AGENDA ITEM: 6I 
SUBJECT: 
APPOINTMENT OF BOARD OFFICERS FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2024 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Steve Ludecke, President, will announce Board Officers for 2024. 
 
DISCUSSION/FINDINGS:  
The Big Bear Municipal Water District establishes Board officers per the District’s Administrative 
Code.  
 
 Chief Executive Office: Brittany Lamson, Interim General Manager 
 Treasurer: Brittany Lamson, Interim General Manager 
 Secretary to the Board: Brittany Lamson, District Administrative Secretary 
 Deputy Secretary: Mike Stephenson, Chief Operations Officer 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:   None 
 
FINANCING: None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     Submitted by:  Brittany Lamson, Interim General Manager 
  



BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 
MEETING DATE:   December 21, 2023                               AGENDA ITEM: 6J 
SUBJECT: 
APPOINTMENT OF THE DISTRICT’S JPIA REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR 2023 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Steve Ludecke, President, will announce the District’s JPIA representative for 2024. 
 
DISCUSSION/FINDINGS:  
This decision is made based on the committees that each Director serves on. Whichever Director 
serves on the Watermaster Committee will be nominated as the JPIA representative for 2024 
unless there is another Director who would like to represent the District. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:   None 
 
FINANCING: None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
     Submitted by:  Brittany Lamson, Interim General Manager 
  



BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 
MEETING DATE:   December 21, 2023                               AGENDA ITEM: 6K 
SUBJECT: 
BOARD TO DETERMINE WHO WILL BE THE BVBGSA REPRESENTATIVE. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Board to discuss who will be BVBGSA representative for the District. 
 
DISCUSSION/FINDINGS:  
Steve Ludecke is currently serving as the BVBGSA representative for the District.  
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:   None 
 
FINANCING: None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
    Submitted by:  Brittany Lamson, Interim General Manager 
  


	12-21-2023 Board Agenda-only
	12-7-2023 Board Minutes draft
	12.15.2023 Warrant List Detail
	Quagga Bands Quote
	1221-6A-StaffReport
	1221-6A-Res. 023-07 Admin Code-Whole Document
	1221-6A-AdminCode FINAL DRAFT
	CHAPTER  1.  GENERAL PROVISIONS
	Section 1.101  Purpose.
	Section 1.102   Mission and Goals.
	Section 1.103  Scope.
	Section 1.104   Effect of Code on Past Actions and Obligations.
	Section 1.105   Maintenance of Code.
	Section 1.106  Definitions.
	Section 1.107  Official Seal of Authority.
	Section 1.109   Holidays.
	Section 1.110   Regular Holidays that Occur on a Weekend.

	CHAPTER 2.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	ARTICLE 1 - ELECTION, APPOINTMENT AND OATHS
	Section 2.101   General.
	Section 2.102   Relationship Among Board Members.
	Section 2.103  Relationship with Officers and Employees.
	Section 2.104    Election.
	Section 2.105    Unscheduled Vacancies.
	Section 2.106   Oath of Office.

	ARTICLE 2 - ORGANIZATION AND BOARD OFFICERS
	Section 2.201   Divisions.
	Section 2.202    Officers of the Board.
	Section 2.203    Powers, Duties and Responsibilities of Board.
	Section 2.204    Code of Behavior.
	Section 2.205  Committee Structure.
	Section 2.206  Board Development

	ARTICLE 3 - MEETINGS AND MINUTES
	Section 2.301    General.
	Section 2.302   Regular and Special Meetings.
	Section 2.303  Attendance at Meetings
	Section 2.304    Adjournment.
	Section 2.305    Continuance of Hearings.
	Section 2.306  Minutes of Board Meetings.
	Section 2.307    Rules of Conduct.
	Section 2.308    Agenda.
	Section 2.309    Closed Sessions.

	ARTICLE 4 - COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES
	Section 2.401   Compensation.
	Section 2.402    Expenses.


	CHAPTER 3.  DISTRICT OFFICERS
	ARTICLE 1 - GENERAL MANAGER
	Section 3.101  General Manager.
	Section 3.103    Personnel Rules & Regulations.
	Section 3.104   Emergency Powers.
	Section 3.105    Collection of Delinquent Accounts.

	ARTICLE 2 - OTHER OFFICERS
	Section 3.201    District Counsel.
	Section 3.202    Auditor.
	Section 3.203    Engineer.
	Section 3.204  Lake Rangers.


	CHAPTER 4.  EMPLOYEES
	ARTICLE 1 - COMPENSATION
	Section 4.101    Positions Authorized.
	Section 4.102    Compensation.
	Section 4.103    Cost-of-Living Adjustment (“COLA”).

	ARTICLE 2 – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
	Section 4.201    Benefits.
	Section 4.504  Employee Handbook.


	CHAPTER 5.  FINANCE
	ARTICLE 1 - BUDGET
	Section 5.101   Establishment of Budget.
	Section 5.102    Filing of Budget.
	Section 5.103    Modification of Budget.
	Section 5.104   Implementation of the Budget.

	ARTICLE 2 - OFFICIAL BOOKS AND RECORDS
	Section 5.201    General and Special Books of Account.

	ARTICLE 3 - DEPOSITORIES AND BONDS
	Section 5.301   Bonds.
	Section 5.302    Depositories.

	ARTICLE 4 - CLAIMS AND CHECKS
	Section 5.401    Claims:  General.
	Section 5.402    Filing of Claim Required.
	Section 5.403    Presentation of Claim.
	Section 5.404    Contents of Claim.
	Section 5.405    Time for Presentation of Claims.
	Section 5.406    Leave to Present Late Claim.
	Section 5.407    Time for Action by the Board.
	Section 5.408   Notice of Rejection of Claim.
	Section 5.409    Claim as Prerequisite to Suit.
	Section 5.410    Claims Under $500.
	Section 5.412    Approval of Warrants and Signature of Checks.
	Section 5.413    Check Register.
	Section 5.414    Deposits.

	ARTICLE 5 - PURCHASING
	Section 5.501    Purpose and Scope.
	Section 5.502    Purchasing Policy.
	Section 5.503    Exceptions.
	Section 5.504    Professional Services.
	Section 5.505    Ancillary Procedures.

	ARTICLE 6 - INVESTMENT POLICY
	Section 5.601    Permitted Investments.
	Section 5.602   Investments.
	Section 5.603    Delegation of Authority
	Section 5.604    Inactive Public Deposits.
	Section 5.605    Reporting Requirements.
	Section 5.606   Diversification.
	Section 5.607    Adoption of Investment Policy.


	CHAPTER 6.  ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW OF DISTRICT PROJECTS
	ARTICLE 1 – GENERAL
	Section 6.101   General.
	Section 6.102  Purpose.
	Section 6.103  Scope.
	Section 6.104  Delegation of Responsibilities.

	ARTICLE  2.  ROLE OF DISTRICT AS RESPONSIBLE AGENCY
	Section 6.201  Lead Agency Concept.
	Section 6.202  Consultation with Lead Agency.
	Section 6.203  Challenge to Lead Agency.

	ARTICLE 3. ROLE OF DISTRICT AS LEAD AGENCY
	Section 6.301  General.
	Section 6.302  Review of Application for Completeness.
	Section 6.303  Initial Review.
	Section 6.304  Negative Declaration.
	Section 6.305  Environmental Impact Report.
	Section 6.306 Use of Environmental Documents.


	CHAPTER 7.  MISCELLANEOUS
	ARTICLE 1 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE
	Section 7.101    Purpose.
	Section 7.102    Designated Positions and Categories of Disclosure.
	Section 7.103    Filing of Disclosure Statements.
	Section 7.104    Ethical Behavior.

	ARTICLE 2 - RECORDS INSPECTION
	Section 7.201    Purpose and Scope.
	Section 7.202    Definitions.
	Section 7.203    General.
	Section 7.204    Exceptions.
	Section 7.205    Additional Public Records.
	Section 7.206    Justification for Withholding of Records.
	Section 7.207    Copies of Records.
	Section 7.208    Public Counter Files.
	Section 7.209    Inspection by Board Members.
	Section 7.210    Other Law.

	ARTICLE 3 - RETENTION OF RECORDS
	Section 7.301    Purpose and Scope.
	Section 7.302    Retention of Original Records.
	Section 7.303    Retention of Duplicate Original Records.
	Section 7.304    Retention of Record for Time Certain.
	Section 7.305    Retention of Other Records.
	Section 7.306    Other Laws.



	1221-6B-StaffReport
	1221-6B-Employee Handbook-FINAL DRAFT 12-18-2023
	I  INTRODUCTORY POLICIES
	INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT
	RIGHT TO REVISE
	AT-WILL EMPLOYMENT STATUS
	EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
	Equal Opportunity


	II EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES
	CATEGORIES OF EMPLOYMENT
	FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES
	SEASONAL EMPLOYEES

	JOB DUTIES
	OPERATING HOURS
	MEAL AND REST PERIODS
	BREAK ROOM
	SMOKING POLICY
	TIMEKEEPING REQUIREMENTS
	PUNCTUALITY AND ATTENDANCE
	WAGES
	PAYMENT OF WAGES
	ADVANCES OF WAGES
	OVERTIME
	EMERGENCY CALL-OUT/IN.
	INCLEMENT WEATHER/NATURAL DISASTER
	PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS
	COMPENSATION

	OPEN-DOOR POLICY
	CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
	OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT
	EMPLOYEES WHO ARE REQUIRED TO DRIVE
	Cellular Phone and VHF Radio USE AND SAFETY IN DISTRICT VEHICLES
	Cellular Phones
	Mobile and Handheld VHF Radios

	PERSONNEL RECORDS
	EMPLOYEE REFERENCES
	ADMINISTRATIVE GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES
	GRIEVANCE
	GRIEVANT
	GENERAL RULES
	INFORMAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE
	FORMAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

	TECHNOLOGY POLICY
	USES OF DISTRICT SYSTEMS THAT ARE ACCEPTABLE:
	USES THAT ARE UNACCEPTABLE:
	IT IS ALSO UNACCEPTABLE TO USE DISTRICT SYSTEMS TO:
	Electronic Mail (E-mail)
	SOCIAL NETWORKING
	COMPUTER SOFTWARE POLICY

	CONDUCTING PERSONAL BUSINESS
	RADIO COMMUNICATIONS

	III STANDARDS OF CONDUCT
	PROHIBITED CONDUCT
	UNLAWFUL HARASSMENT
	Complaint Procedure
	Corrective Action
	No Retaliation
	Agency Complaint Procedure

	WORKPLACE ANTI-VIOLENCE POLICY
	OFF-DUTY CONDUCT
	DRUG AND ALCOHOL ABUSE
	Reasonable Suspicion Testing: Employees may be referred for drug and alcohol testing if a District manager reasonably suspects the employee of being under the influence of drugs and/or alcohol.
	A reasonable suspicion determination is based on significant and observable changes in, e.g., employee performance, appearance, behavior, or speech, such that the trained manager reasonably suspects the employee to be under the influence. If such reas...
	Post-Accident Testing: Testing may be required in connection with a work-related accident when there is a reasonable suspicion that alcohol or drug use contributed to the occurrence of the accident. Where appropriate, post-accident alcohol/drug tests ...


	DRESS CODE
	ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF
	Causal Day:
	MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS EMPLOYEES
	CUSTOMER RELATIONS
	CONFIDENTIALITY
	BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS
	CELL PHONE REIMBURSEMENT
	EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT
	AUTOMOBILE EXPENSES
	MEDIA CONTACTS


	IV OPERATIONAL CONSIDERATIONS
	WORKPLACE SAFETY
	ERGONOMICS
	EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURES

	V EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
	HOLIDAYS
	VACATIONS / PAID TIME OFF (PTO)
	Full Time Employees
	SEASONAL EMPLOYEES
	EMPLOYEE PAID SICK TIME
	PAID SICK TIME BUYOUT
	PAID SICK TIME DONATIONS
	ADDITIONAL OPTIONAL/UNPAID LEAVE
	EMPLOYEE INSURANCE BENEFITS
	MEDICAL AND DENTAL INSURANCE
	SOCIAL SECURITY
	WORKERS' COMPENSATION
	PREGNANCY-RELATED DISABILITY LEAVE
	FAMILY/MEDICAL LEAVE (California Family Rights Act)
	Intermittent Leave

	VICTIMS OF CRIME LEAVE
	TIME OFF FOR VOTING
	VOLUNTEER CIVIL SERVICE PERSONNEL
	SCHOOL ACTIVITIES
	SCHOOL CONFERENCES INVOLVING SUSPENSION
	SCHOOL ACTIVITIES

	EXTERNAL EMPLOYEE EDUCATION/TRAINING AND REIMBURSEMENT
	Compensation for Training Time
	RECREATIONAL ACTIVITIES AND PROGRAMS
	SECURITY
	EMPLOYER PROPERTY
	SOLICITATION AND DISTRIBUTION OF LITERATURE
	CHILDREN AT WORK


	1221-6C-StaffReport
	1221-6C-New Patrol Boat 2024
	Retail

	1221-6D-StaffReport
	1221-6D-New Work Boat 2024 28XXL LC
	Retail

	1221-6E-StaffReport
	1221-6E-Big Bear Fire 2 no concrete
	1221-6E-Big Bear fire dock location
	1221-6F-StaffReport
	1221-6F-CARPI Lining RFP
	1221-6G-StaffReport
	1221-6H-StaffReport
	1221-6I-StaffReport
	1221-6J-StaffReport
	1221-6K-StaffReport



